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Background

Entities that desire to participate in the proposal window process and be the designated entity for
transmission projects must submit a pre-qualification package to the Office of the Interconnection
during the pre-qualification window. Upon receiving the package, PJM will acknowledge receipt and
assign the submittal a unique identifier for tracking purposes.

Companies will be evaluated based upon their ability to engineer, develop, construct, operate and
maintain a generic transmission facility within PJM. If the filing company does not have experience in a
specific area, PJM will request that the company provide a detailed plan for leveraging the experience of
their affiliates and contractors.

Pre-qualification packages will be posted on PJM.com after a final determination has been made. A
company may provide a redacted version for posting.

Please note that PJM retains the right to request any additional information deemed necessary. If PJM
makes such a request, the submitting company will have 30 days to provide the additional information.

Once a company is pre-qualified they must submit any changes in their package to PJM. A company does
not need to be pre-qualified on an annual basis.

Please email all questions and pre-qualification packages to O1kPreQuallnfo@pjm.com. The PIM
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement in Section 1.5.8(a) (FERC acceptance pending) states that the
following information must be provided in all pre-qualification packages:

Pre-Qualification Information

1. Name and address of the entity including a point of contact.
East Kentucky Power Cooperative

Attn: Amanda Stacy

4775 Lexington Road

Winchester, KY 40391

2. Technical and engineering qualifications of the entity or its affiliate,

partner, or parent company.

EKPC has a Design and Construction Department responsible for the siting, physical design, substation
site and transmission line easement acquisition, project management, and construction of transmission
lines and substations. The engineering staff includes 8 engineers, 4 with Professional Engineer licenses and
a cumulative 91 years of experience. In addition, EKPC has a Project Management Office with staff
that supports formal management of all transmission projects. As a transmission owner, EKPC owns
nearly 3,000 miles of transmission line with 992 miles above 100 kV, 44 BES transmission stations and 29
lower voltage transmission stations. EKPC has been responsible for the design and construction of
transmission facilities in its service area since the 1950s. In addition to the aforementioned departments,
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personnel from System Protection, Telecommunications, and Metering Departments support the
design and construction of new transmission facilities in their areas of expertise. These departments
include a total of 29 staff members with 13 engineers.

3. Demonstrated experience of the entity or its affiliate, partner, or parent
company to develop, construct, maintain, and operate transmission facilities.
Including a list or other evidence of transmission facilities previously

developed regarding construction, maintenance, or operation of transmission
facilities both inside and outside of the PJM Region.

See the response to item #2 above regarding EKPC’'s experience and ability to design and construct
transmission facilities. EKPC also has Power Delivery Maintenance and Operations Departments with
substantial experience in maintaining and operating transmission facilities at operating voltages from 69
kV up to 345 kV.

Within the last ten years, EKPC has designed and constructed (or oversaw construction of) numerous
new transmission facilities in addition to numerous upgrades and modifications at existing EKPC
transmission facilities. The majority of these facilities are 69 kV facilities. The following is a list of the
new facilities at 100 kV or above designed and constructed by or on behalf of EKPC within the
2008-2017 period are:
e Hebron 138/69 kV Substation (includes interconnection with Duke Energy Ohio/KY at 138 kV)
e Webster Road 138/69 kV Substation (includes interconnection with Duke Energy Ohio/KY at 138
kV)
e Central Hardin 138/69 kV Substation (includes interconnection with LG&E/KU at 138 kV)
e West Garrard 345 kV Substation (includes interconnection with LG&E/KU at 345 kV)
e J.K. Smith-West Garrard 345 kV Transmission Line (35 miles of new 345 kV line construction)
e J.K.Smith 345/138 kV Substation (includes connection of two combustion turbines at the
substation and installation of two 345/138 kV autotransformers)

A list of some of the significant upgrade projects designed and constructed by or on behalf of
EKPC within the 2008-2017 period are:

e Cooper 161 kV Station Reconfiguration (modified substation configuration to create two main
busses and a transfer bus)
e McCreary County 161 kV Substation Expansion (added equipment to terminate a new 161 kV
interconnection with TVA and reconfiguration of substation)
e Marion County 161-138 kV Transformer Upgrade (replaced 161-138 kV, 100 MVA transformer
with a 200 MVA transformer).
e Gallatin County 138 kV Split Bus Addition (modified substation configuration to create a ring
bus configuration).
e Bullitt County 161-69 kV Transformer Upgrade (replaced 161-69 kV, 100 MVA transformer
with a 150 MVA Transformer).
All of these projects were successfully implemented with no significant problems in the design,
construction, or energization of the facilities.

East Kentucky Power Cooperative Proposal for Designated Entity Status 2
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EKPC’'s Power Delivery Maintenance department consists of 69 employees responsible for
maintaining and supporting the maintenance of EKPC's transmission facilities. These
responsibilities include switching of transmission facilities, inspections of equipment and facilities,
maintenance of equipment, replacement of obsolete, aged, or failed equipment, and maintenance of
transmission line rights-of-way. EKPC’'s Power Delivery Maintenance Department includes four
service centers located in strategic locations throughout the state to reduce drive time and facilitate
rapid response time following outages. The Power Delivery Maintenance Department also includes
a reliability and technical support team responsible for outage investigations, recommendations
for reliability improvements, and general support functions. Also a planning and scheduling team
exists within Power Delivery Maintenance to optimize EKPC’s maintenance activities.

EKPC’s System Operations Department consists of 14 employees responsible for the daily and short-
term monitoring and operation of EKPC’s transmission system. This staff includes nine system operators
that man a 24/7 transmission desk. These system operators are all certified as system operators by both
NERC and PJM. The Operations Department also includes three operations engineers responsible for
operational analysis, state estimator maintenance, outage coordination, and other support activities.
Prior to June 1, 2013, EKPC was a NERC-registered Transmission Operator that had successfully
completed several NERC readiness and compliance audits.

4, Previous record of the entity or its affiliate, partner, or parent company

to adhere to standardized construction, maintenance and operating practices.
EKPC has extensive experience adhering to standardized construction, maintenance and operating
practices. EKPC has maintained and continues to maintain compliance with OSHA rules and regulations.
EKPC has designed and maintained its facilities to comply with the National Electric Safety Code. EKPC
includes applicable IEEE and ANSI standards in its design, maintenance, and operation practices. Also, as
a Rural Utilities Service (RUS) borrower, EKPC adheres to published RUS design specifications. Until June
1, 2013, EKPC was a NERC-registered Transmission Operator. EKPC met compliance with all NERC
Reliability Standards and associated requirements applicable to Transmission Operators. EKPC
continues to be a NERC-registered Transmission Owner. EKPC has complied and will continue to meet
compliance with the NERC Reliability Standards and associated requirements applicable to Transmission
Owners.

5. Capability of the entity or its affiliate, partner, or parent company to

adhere to standardized construction, maintenance and operating practices.

EKPC has extensive experience adhering to standardized construction, maintenance and operating
practices. EKPC'’s staff is familiar with standardized practices and incorporates these into its design,
construction, maintenance, and operations activities. EKPC has a Safety Department that conducts
frequent safety meetings, monitors EKPC adherence to safety rules and regulations, and ensures EKPC is
implementing best practices in the area of safety. EKPC also has a Compliance Department that
oversees EKPC’s NERC compliance program to ensure that EKPC is fully compliant with all applicable
NERC Standards and requirements. EKPC strongly encourages — and in many cases requires — staff
members to gain certifications that require familiarity with many industry standards. For instance, EKPC
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encourages and/or requires engineering staff to become licensed Professional Engineers. EKPC
maintains a substantial training budget and requires employees involved in design, construction,
maintenance and operations of transmission facilities to participate in training activities related to
their responsibilities. As discussed in the response to item #4, EKPC staff members are familiar with
applicable standardized practices and maintain adherence to these in design, construction,
maintenance, and operations activities.

6. Financial statements of the entity or its affiliate, partner, or parent
company. Please provide the most recent fiscal quarter, as well as the most
recent three fiscal years, or the period of existence of the entity, if shorter, or
such other evidence demonstrating an entity’s current and expected financial

capability acceptable to the Office of the Interconnection.
See the following reports attached at the end of this document:

e 2016 EKPC Annual Report
e 2017 EKPC Annual Report
e 2018 EKPC Second Quarter Report

7. Commitment by the entity to execute the Consolidated Transmission

Owners Agreement, if the entity becomes a Designated Entity.
EKPC has executed the PJM Consolidated Transmission Owners Agreement.

8. Evidence demonstrating the ability of the entity to address and timely

remedy failure of facilities.

As discussed in the response to item #3, EKPC has a large Power Delivery Maintenance staff that is
responsible for addressing outages/failures of facilities. EKPC has four service centers strategically
located in the eastern, southern, northern, and western parts of its system to allow efficient, timely
response to equipment outages. EKPC maintains an inventory of necessary equipment to be able to
replace failed equipment and quickly return facilities to service. In particular, EKPC ensures that it has
spares for critical equipment — transformers, bushings, transformer pumps and fans, circuit breakers,
etc.

9. Description of the experience of the entity in acquiring rights of way.

East Kentucky Power Cooperative’s Project Management Office employs one right-of-way agent
dedicated to engineering projects. Additionally, there is a second right-of-way agent available to
acquire easements and real property in the Maintenance department. EKPC staff oversees contract
right-of-way agents as needed for acquiring land rights. Combined, the right-of-way staff has over 60
years of experience negotiating, performing title searches, and acquiring rights-of-way. The right-of-way
staff works alongside EKPC’s legal counsel which has nearly 70 years of legal expertise in land rights
matters in Kentucky.
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2016:

Fina nciaI (Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses
Net Margin
Members’ Equities
Equity Ratio (%)

Operational

Sales to Member Cooperatives (MWh) *
Member Revenue Per kWh Sold (mills/kWh) *
Cost of Owned Generation (mills/kWh)
System Peak Demand (MW)

Winter Season #**

Summer Season
Net Generation (MWh)

b Includes steam sales

2016
$887,419
$737,131

$53,708
$575,825
15.5

2016

12,866,735

64.51
56.25

2,890
2,293
9,758,569

2015 Increase/(Decrease) %
$885,054 0.3
$730,309 0.9
$49,290 9.0
$511,947 12,5
15.4 0.6
2015 Increase/(Decrease) %
12,489,945 3.0
67.95 (5.1)
61.24 (8.1)
3,507 (17.6)
2,179 5.2
8,618,586 13.2

e Represents seasonal winter peaks achieved during each respective calendar year (1/18/16 and 2/20/15)

Sources of Electricity
by MWh

[
Landfill gas

[ | 1% 'f’
Natural gas 2% 69%

[} 1%
Hydro/purchases

27%

Other purchases

Coal

Note: Pie chart figures are rounded.

Customer Classes

by member sales revenue

Small Commercial

Industrial

66%

Residential

Power Plant Capacity*

by net MW

|
Landfill gas

Natural gas

579%

Coal

1%

* Includes 168 net MW designated to
serve long-term tolling and PPA agreements

EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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Located in the heart of the Bluegrass state, East Kentucky Power Cooperative is a not-for-profit
generation and transmission (G&T) electric utility with headquarters in Winchester, Ky. Our cooperative
has a vital mission: to safely generate and deliver affordable, reliable electric power to 16 owner-
member cooperatives serving more than one million Kentuckians.

Together, with our 16 owner-members, we're known as Kentucky's Touchstone Energy Cooperatives.
The member co-ops distribute energy to 586,761 meters and 1.1 million Kentuckians across 87
counties. We're leaders in energy efficiency and environmental stewardship. And we're
committed to providing power to improve the lives of people in Kentucky.

2016 at a glance

Total Energy Sales Energy Sales to Energy Sales to Total Operating Net Margin Assets Average Wholesale
(GWh) Members Non-members Revenue (S millions) ($ billions) Rate to Members
(GWh) (GWh) (S miflions) (S/MWh)

13,584 112,867 1717 887.4 153.7 137 64.5

3 EKPC 2016 Annual Report




EKPC’s 16 owner-member cooperatives include:

Big Sandy RECC
Blue Grass Energy Cooperative %  Licking Valley RECC

Nolin RECC

Owen Electric Cooperative
Salt River Electric Cooperative
Shelby Energy Cooperative
South Kentucky RECC

Jackson Energy Cooperative

Clark Energy Cooperative
Cumberland Valley Eiectric

® Farmers RECC

® Fleming-Mason Energy Cooperative
Grayson RECC

Inter-County Energy Taylor County RECC
EKPC headquarters
-5 il \
Sl W o y : g
2 l - T\ :h’r —
AT %/

East Kentucky Power Generation
Coal Generation Landfill Generation
Spurlock 1,346 net MW Bavarian 4.6 net MW
Cooper 341 net MW Laurel Ridge 3.0 net MW

Green Valley 2.3 net MW
TotallSogl EGazinetM Pearl Hollow 2.3 net MW

Pendleton 3.0 net MW
Natural Gas Generation Glasgow™* 0.8 net MW
Smith S

m ummer Total Landfill 16.0 net MW

Combustion 753 net MW
Turbine Winter
Units 989 net MW Hydro Generation

Southeastern 170 MW
Bluegrass* Summer Power Adm.
Combustion 501 net MW (SEPA)
Turbine Winter
Units 567 net MW

* Under an existing agreement, which continues until April 2019, a third party
Total Natural Gas Summer 1,254 net MW receives the output of one Bluegrass Generating Station unit,
Total Natural Gas Winter 1,556 net MW

** Effective December 2015, a third party began receiving the output of Glasgow
in a 10-year power purchase agreement,

Member Populations
Served (millions)

Member Peak Miles of Fmployees
Dernand (MW) Transmission Lines

2,890 2,847 696

EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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A message from the CEO and the Chairman

During 2016, the energy landscape continued to shift
for East Kentucky Power Cooperative (EKPC) and utilities
nationwide. Our industry further diversified generation
fuel sources in response to tightening environmental
regulations and changing markets.

Once again, our people made the difference and were key
to our success. They adapted to the changing industry
landscape by staying focused on safety and our mission,
by executing our Strategic Plan, and by recruiting, training
and retaining the right employees. During the cooperative’s
75th anniversary year, we are proud to report that our
people - directors, management and employees - kept

us on a path to a successful future.

New safety slogan adopted
Safety remained our highest priority and continued to be
at the forefront of business throughout 2016.

We conducted more than 4,300 safety observations during
which employees and management discussed safety and
how to improve our program. We had an employee contest
that resulted in the adoption of a new safety slogan: EKPC
Safety is R.I.G.H.T. (the Reason | Go Home Tonight).

Even with our significant safety efforts, one employee
was involved in a serious accident early in the year.
Our prayers continue to be with him and his family.
This incident serves as a constant reminder of how
dangerous our jobs are and why we emphasize safety
as our top priority. It shows the importance of our
safety program, and why we must continually keep
the program fresh.

Natural gas and renewable capacity added
EKPC incorporated the natural-gas fired Bluegrass
Generating Station into our production fleet in 2016.

Bluegrass was purchased in December 2015 at an attractive
price and came with a dedicated, high-quality workforce.
This addition to our generating fleet has put EKPC in an
excellent position to meet peak system demands for years
to come.

Our cooperative system is also leading the way on renewable
energy and embracing technologies of the future. At the
end of 2016, EKPC received approval from the Kentucky
Public Service Commission (PSC) to build one of the state’s
largest solar projects.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

EKPC expanded the landfill gas-to-electric plant at
Bavarian's Landfill in Boone County. The cooperative also
dedicated a new landfill-gas plant in Glasgow with Farmers
RECC and the City of Glasgow. This is our sixth plant that
recovers methane to generate renewable power.

The addition of natural gas and renewable generation
enabled us to continue to diversify our generation portfolio.
Best of all, we are adding renewable power options at
reasonable prices for the members who want these options.

Third year in PJM completed

During 2016, the owner-members benefitted significantly
from our third year in PJM interconnection, the world’s
largest centrally dispatched power grid. PJM has provided
access to low-cost, reliable power, and participation has
enabled us to market generation across a wide region.
These sales, along with payments from PJM for our capacity,
have provided a vital revenue stream for EKPC and lower
the monthly bills to our owner-members. Being in PJM has
helped build equity, improve reliability, increase employee
focus on operational excellence and optimize the dispatch of
EKPC’s generating plants.

Credit rating upgraded

Despite mild temperatures, we used tight controls on costs
and optimized the operation of our generating assets to
achieve another year of strong financial performance. EKPC
posted a net margin of $53.7 million on revenues of $887.4
million for the year ended Dec. 31, 2016.

During 2016, we billed our owner-members $64.77 per
megawatt-hour - $2.96 below the target of $67.73.
This saved our owner-members more than $36 million.

Credit rating agencies again recognized and rewarded our
success. Fitch Ratings upgraded EKPC's credit rating to
“A-" with a stable outlook, citing EKPC's sustained financial
performance and increasingly diversified power supply.

EKPC also secured favorable terms on a new credit facility
totaling $600 million, extending the term to five years with
an option to add two more years. The financing will fund
operations and help us build future capital projects. The
agreement provides financial flexibility for the Board as it
determines EKPC's strategic direction, and it gives us the
ability to navigate market swings.



EKPC today has excellent access to private financial
markets and greater capabilities to take advantage of
new opportunities to better serve our owner-members
in the years ahead. These achievements help EKPC to
fulfill its mission to safely provide affordable, reliable
electricity.

Technology attracts jobs and investments

The year’s accomplishments also included the introduction
of new online tools our owner-members can use to showcase

available industrial tracts and to attract new jobs to their
service areas.

Aerial drones began capturing video footage of prospective
industrial sites and precisely mapping the topography,
landmarks and property boundaries. This new tool,
dubbed PowerVision, provides valuable information to
site selectors, enabling them to quickly find ideal locations
to build new commercial/industrial facilities.

Another tool called PowerMap provides precise GPS
mapping of owner-member electric service territories
and brings all this technology to the palm of your hand.

Celebrating 75 years of service

Our business is all about serving people. It's why our
owner-members formed EKPC 75 years ago and why
we exist today.

On this diamond anniversary of our cooperative, we
thank our 16 owner-members for all they have done
to improve the lives of people across Kentucky.

And we thank our employees. They make the difference,
and go far above and beyond the call of duty. Their
dedication to excellence has propelled our cooperative
to higher levels of performance. They have made EKPC
an industry leader because they understand that we exist
to help people.

People are our business. They are our strength. And they
are powering us toward a bright future that most certainly
lies ahead.

Anthony Campbell
President and CEO
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Joe Spalding
Chairman of the Board
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At East Kentucky Power
Cooperative, people make
the difference.

2016: Year in Review

Safety

Safety improvements continue

EKPC believes that every job can and must be performed
safely. Providing affordable, reliable power every second
of every day often means strenuous work under harsh
conditions, but safety is EKPC's top priority. EKPC believes
that with proper training and equipment, attention to
details and by looking out for each other, everyone can

go home safely each and every day.

The year began with another successful Safety Week where
nationally renowned speaker Kina Repp spoke to employees
about how she survived a horrific workplace accident, but
then turned adversity into a positive by inspiring employees
to embrace safety in everything they do. During the week,
EKPC introduced four new employee Safety All-Star award
winners and held seminars on lattice tower rescue,

motorcycle safety and more.

EKPC’s Central Safety Committee (CSC) again provided
strategic oversight and guidance to the safety program
throughout 2016. The CSC is led by CEO Tony Campbell

Top: Red Team members from Spurlock Station carry a
200-pound mannequin during the Confined Space Rodeo at
J.K. Smith Station. Spurlock Station won the competition. Left:
Maintenance Mechanics Lance Hill (left) and Jerry Edgington
stand in front of Cooper Station located near Somerset, Ky.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 8



T.J. Svoboda, son of senior environmental engineer Todd Svoboda, was a winner in the 2016 Safety Art Contest. Children and
grandchildren of employees participate in the contest, which engages family members in EKPC's safety culture.

and also includes the entire executive staff, the manager
of Corporate Safety and Security, plant managers and
other leaders throughout the organization, and team

leaders of five process improvement teams.

The year saw the addition of more than 15 new process
improvement safety team members to the CSC, bringing
the number of employees who have served directly on
those safety teams to over 150. The number increases
to 300 - almost 45 percent of the entire workforce — after
adding employees working on safety committees and

safety councils.

To improve rescue skills at generating stations, employee
teams competed in a Confined Space Rodeo in four events
that included rescue drag, horizontal retrieval, vertical

retrieval and knot tying.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

Other safety highlights:

Breaker training facility opened. Production employees
benefitted from a new training area at Spurlock Station
where operators safely practice one of the most

dangerous tasks at a plant, opening and closing breakers.

Challenge coin. Employees received a Safety Challenge
Coin with the new safety slogan, and they were asked
to carry the coin at all times as a daily reminder to focus

on safety.

Family Safety Fair. EKPC hosted its fourth annual safety
fair for employees and their families. The fair actively
engages family members in the safety culture and
provides an opportunity to honor the children and
grandchildren of employees who entered the Kids
Safety Art Contest.



W
Incident underscores the
vital importance of safety

The cooperative family received a grim
reminder of the critical importance of
always thinking about safety following
a serious accident in April 2016. One day
during the spring forever changed the life
of ayoung EKPC lineman and his family.

EKPC held a Safety Stand Down following
the incident with all employees to keep
them informed and to remind everyone
to be vigilant at all times about safety.
EKPC’s heartfelt thoughts and prayers
are with this young man and his family.

EKPC obtained regulatory approval to constuct Cooperative Solar One, the largest sun-to-electricity community solar farm in
Kentucky. The facility is expected to produce enough electricity to power about 1,000 homes.

Operations

Cooperative Solar approved

The Kentucky Public Service Commission approved EKPC's
application to build an 8.5-megawatt solar project. The solar
installation will be located behind EKPC's headquarters, adjacent
to Interstate 64. With more than 32,000 photo-voltaic panels
covering 60 acres, the project will be one of Kentucky's largest

solar farms.

Cooperative Solar One, as the farm is called, encourages
residential and commercial members of the owner-member
cooperatives to purchase a license for a portion of the project’s
generating capacity. Participants then receive credits on
their monthly electric bill for the value of the energy from

their licensed share.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 10
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. East Kentucky Power employees
: ‘éo above and beyond the call

L of duty. For 75 years, their

the organization to the
est levels of performance.

Top: By adding Bluegrass Generating Station, EKPC increased
overall capacity 20 percent. Left: Ben Eickbush, left, and Richie
Gulley are both plant operators at Spurlock Station.

The farm will provide renewable power that is much more
cost effective than private solar panels, doesn’t require
maintenance by homeowners or businesses, and enables
retail members to avoid the hassles of home installation.
Participants can cost-effectively show their commitment
to the environment and to future technologies.

Bluegrass Generating Station added

After completing the purchase of Bluegrass Generating
Station at the end of 2015, EKPC incorporated the natural
gas-fueled power plant into its generating capacity during
2016.

Built in 2002, the plant features three simple-cycle natural
gas units with a net rated winter capacity of 567 mega-
watts. A third party receives the output of one unit under
an existing power purchase agreement, which continues
through April 2019.

The plant provided a 20 percent overall increase in EKPC’s
generation capacity, while assisting with greater fuel
diversification in accordance with the Strategic Plan.
Throughout the year, EKPC dispatched the Bluegrass units
to take advantage of favorable market prices in PJM.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 12
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Substation Technician Xenia White and his co-workers in Power Delivery and System Operations nearly matched EKPC’s all-time

record for system reliability in 2016.

During a farewell luncheon in 2016, more than 125 current
and retired employees celebrated Dale Station’s important
role as Kentucky’s first co-op power plant.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

Dale Station ceases operations

In April 2016, Dale Station ceased operations, marking the
end of an era. The facility, which originally cost $12 million,
was Kentucky's first co-op power plant and began producing
power in 1954. It was the first plant in the state to utilize
low-cost federal Rural Electrification Administration (REA)
financing and received, at that time, the largest REA

loan ever.

Dale Station provided hundreds of families with good-paying
careers and brought life-changing electricity to thousands

of farm families.

To commemorate the plant’s role in dramatically improving
the lives of Kentuckians, about 125 current and retired
employees gathered at Dale Station in late spring for a
farewell celebration.



A

¥ K
; yr
.Jgélﬁ'- .

Ry

Located on the banks of the Ohio River near Maysville, Spurlock Station is EKPC’s largest plant. It is named after EKPC’s first
general manager, Hugh L. Spurlock, who was a pioneer in bringing power to thousands of Kentucky farm families.

Ash removal finishes next phase ahead of schedule
EKPC completed the second year of a project to transport
ash from Dale Station near the Kentucky River to Smith
Station. Crews excavated the ash from Dale and moved it
to Smith Station by truck. Favorable weather enabled EKPC
to finish the work planned for 2016 ahead of schedule.

With 3,270 acres, Smith Station provides ample buffer
between the landfill and neighboring properties while
safely holding the ash away from the Kentucky River. The
newly permitted state-of-the-art landfill at Smith Station
is engineered to comply with new non-hazardous waste
regulations (Coal Combustion Rule, or CCR) from the EPA.

Spurlock landfill expands

EKPC expanded the landfill at Spurlock Station by more
than 11 acres to comply with the EPA Coal Combustion
Residuals Rule. The project resulted in more than four
million cubic yards of new landfill capacity space and the
installation of leachate collection with advanced drainage.

Workers installed clay and plastic liners and added an

engineered composite drainage layer.
The project will save owner-members nearly $100 million

compared with the cost of using an off-site landfill by the
time the landfill reaches full capacity.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 14
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Employees are the co-op’s
strength. They know the
co-op exists to serve the
16 owner-member
cooperatives and to

help people at the

end of the lines.

Top: Power Delivery employees set a transformer at the
Prestonsburg Substation in October. Employees wore pink
hard hats that month in honor of Natjonal Breast Cancer
Awareness Month. Left: Beth Willoughby serves as a system
operator in EKPC's Market Operations Center in Winchester, Ky.

System reliability nearly equals all-time record
EKPC's owner-members again experienced an exceptional
year for service reliability in 2016. The co-op nearly
matched the all-time record achieved in 2015.

EKPC met its goal by finishing the year with just over 22
minutes of SAIDI (System Average Interruption Duration
Index), while the average restoration per end-use retail
member for CAIDI (Customer Average Interruption Duration
Index) was 54 minutes, which surpassed EKPC's target goal.

Employees worked throughout the year to identify and
address the worst-performing areas of the system to
improve reliability for homeowners and businesses.

EKPC also continued to focus on replacing and refurbishing
aging infrastructure. Several locations within the service
area experienced load growth requiring new substations
and transmission lines, EKPC invested almost $31 million
in 2016 to upgrade or build new transmission lines and
distribution substations and supporting infrastructure.

In addition, EKPC protected grid reliability by focusing on

physical and cyber security assets that are critical for
delivery of power to the owner-members.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 16
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Cooper Station near Somerset has a new air quality control system and is named after U.S. Sen. John Sherman Cooper,
a Kentuckian who helped establish the state’s rural electric program.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

Energy efficiency and
the environment

Environmental Affairs ensures regulatory compliance
EKPC's Environmental Affairs program obtains and manages
state and federal requirements for the cooperative’s operating
permits. The department continued to work proactively in 2016
to ensure compliance with sweeping and ever-changing EPA

regulations.

These EPA regulations include rules governing cross-state air
pollution, plant water intake structures, coal ash, mercury and
greenhouse gas emissions, regional haze, water discharges and

emissions of carbon.
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Hank Smith, a demand side management program manager, worked with owner-member cooperatives in achieving another
record-setting year for energy savings during 2016.

Programs achieve energy savings targets

EKPC and its owner-members are committed to helping
retail members identify opportunities to improve the
energy efficiency of homes and businesses, and the co-ops
offer a variety of options to achieve that goal. Collectively,
the system employs 29 energy advisors, most of whom
have advanced certifications such as RESNET Accredited
Home Energy Raters (HERS) and Building Performance
Institute (BPI) Building Analysts.

During 2016, EKPC and the owner-members surpassed the
system-wide goals for participation in energy efficiency
programs. The co-ops together achieved kWh reductions
of 34,320 megawatt-hours, a 38 percent increase over
2015, a record year for energy savings.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 18
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By working smart, employees
have made East Kentucky
Power a high-performance

organization.

Top: EKPC’s peregrine falcon program has long provided a
home high above Spurlock Station, giving these rare and
beautiful birds a safe home. Left: Maintenance Mechanic
Mitch Gaines drives a forklift at Cooper Station.

Programs show commitment to conservation
EKPC worked with many organizations across the state to

promote environmental conservation in 2016.

EKPC participated in KY EXCEL, a leadership program from
the Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection. The
co-op provided habitat to encourage the re-population of
rare birds such as the Peregrine falcon and assisted the state

with counting endangered bat populations.

In addition to the option of participating in Cooperative Solar,
retail members can participate in the co-op’s environmental
stewardship by enrolling in the envirowatts renewable energy
program. The voluntary program allows retail members to
support the expansion of renewable energy projects by
purchasing power generated from biomass, hydro, solar

and wind sources.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report 20
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Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Don Mosier, left, monitors the load in the Energy Control Center with
System Operator John Sutton.

Direct load control continues to grow

A voluntary program called SimpleSaver is helping EKPC and
the owner-members reduce costs during peaks. The program
involves installing remote switches on end-use member air

conditioners and water heaters and managing the units.
In 2016, 2,282 switches were installed on air conditioners and

water heaters, providing 3 additional megawatts of load
reduction in summers and .5 megawatts during winters.
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Located on the Kentucky River at Trapp, J.K. Smith Station has nine combustion turbine units. The plant is named after one of
EKPC’s founders, who spread the benefits of rural electrification across the nation and to countries around the world.

EKPC’s Economic Development team uses drones to provide
companies interested in Kentucky with aerial views of available
industrial tracts. From left are Ben Shinabery of QK4, an
engineering and planning firm, Manager of Economic
Development Rodney Hitch, CEO Tony Campbell, Associate
Manager of Economic Development Brad Thomas and
Taylor Kelly of KQ4.

Jobs and community support

Economic Development projects create 3,100 jobs
The Economic Development team worked closely with key
partners to retain and expand existing companies, and to
attract new businesses. The team’s projects resulted in the
creation of 3,100 jobs and brought more than $900 million
in new investments to owner-member service territories.

The team launched powerful new Web-based tools to assist
businesses and site selectors worldwide. The team unveiled
PowerVision, an aerial showcase of available commercial and
industrial tracts across areas served by Kentucky's Touchstone
Energy Cooperatives. PowerVision uses drone technology to
provide a birds-eye view of available tracts, along with vital
information about communities. With PowerVision, site selectors
can conduct virtual site visits, and quickly analyze sites and
buildings, without leaving the office.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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The future is tremendously
bright. East Kentucky Power
has many opportunities.to
grow, the ability to execute
and great employees who
can make it happen.

An upgraded EKPC-developed app called PowerMap helped

in the ongoing efforts to attract new jobs to owner-member

territories. The app provides location-based territory and

economic data for use by site selection professionals. EKPC

updated PowerMap using Google Maps to provide street
view and satellite imagery for companies seeking to build

new facilities.

EKPC also worked closely with TechHire East Kentucky
(TEKY) and Interapt, a Louisville software company, to
launch a boot camp teaching computer coding at Big
Sandy Community and Technical College in partnership
with Shaping Our Appalachian Region (SOAR) and the
Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC). Three dozen
students completed the intensive training and obtained

jobs in the computer science industry.

Top: Associate Manager of Economic Development Brad
Thomas speaks at the Alltech Ideas Conference, a forum of
world-changing ideas, in Lexington. Left: Daniel Strode is a
plant operator at Spurlock Station.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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Controller Michelle Carpenter, left, meets with Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Mike McNalley and
Director of Risk Narmada Nanjundan.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

Throughout the year, EKPC supported the efforts of SOAR to create
jobs across 54 counties in Appalachia and expand opportunities,
while improving health and education.

EKPC and the owner-members expanded access to science,
technology, engineering and math (STEM) education. The co-ops
teamed with Morehead State University, University of Pikeville
and Union College. Through a Teacher Leader Master’s Program
and Project Lead The Way (PLTW), the program provides a
transformative learning experience for students and teachers.

The SOAR-STEM initiative provided professional development
to an elite group of 100 teachers and 18,000 students, which
includes advanced certifications with Teacher Leader Master’s
degrees with PLTW and National Board certifications. The goal
eventually is to provide this elite teacher training to more than
3,000 teachers and STEM education to 80,000 Eastern Kentucky
students over a three-year period.



EKPC’s transmission system has almost 2,900 miles of line serving 16 owner-member cooperatives, which provide power to more

than one million Kentuckians.

A Kentucky veteran of World War Il stands at the Marine
Corps War Memorial during an Honor Flight sponsored by
Kentucky'’s Touchstone Energy Cooperatives.

Co-ops support communities

Touchstone Energy again served as a unifying brand for the
system and for system-wide sponsorships that included the
Special Olympics State Summer Games, the American Red
Cross, an Honor Flight for veterans and a new program for

students.

Kentucky's Touchstone Energy Cooperatives served as platinum
sponsors of the 2016 Special Olympics Summer Games for
1,400 athletes, 600 coaches and 500 family members at
Eastern Kentucky University.

A partnership with the American Red Cross improved emergency
response services in Kentucky. The co-ops joined together to
acquire a new disaster relief vehicle and trailer that was used

to aid to those in need.

The co-ops also joined with Honor Flight Kentucky to
sponsor 43 veterans who served during World War ll,

- EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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the Korean War or the Vietnam War to see their memorials
in Washington, D.C. It was the sixth year Kentucky's
Touchstone Energy Cooperatives sponsored the trip.

The co-ops launched Conservation Clubhouse, a
dynamic presentation that features information on

energy efficiency, energy sources, wildlife and safety.

EKPC also held job fairs for veterans to recruit men and
women who served in the branches of the U.S. military

for a wide variety of positions in the cooperative.

EKPC goes pink for

Breast Cancer Awareness Month

Throughout October, employees across the cooperative
observed national Breast Cancer Awareness Month,
sponsoring numerous events aimed at raising awareness
of the disease. Employees wore pink T-shirts and hardhats,
and held chili cook-offs that raised money for the Susan

G. Komen Foundation.

Top: A student at Southern Elementary in Pulaski County
enjoys the Conservation Clubhouse presentation from
the co-ops. Bottom: Owner-member CEQs, EKPC directors
and staff tour Bluegrass Generating Station and wear
hardhats to support the Power in Pink campaign.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

28



Board Risk Oversight Committee

Assists the Board in fulfilling its risk oversight responsibilities by reviewing enterprise-wide risks,
reviewing risk tolerances and recommending risk-management policies to the Board.

Board Members
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Strategic Issues Committee

Serves as a catalyst of business strategies, monitors the development and implementation of those strategies,
while working with management to develop Board focus on issues that will further strategic planning
and execution of those plans.

Board Members
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Governance Committee
Assists the Board in fulfilling its governance oversight by: ensuring that the Board meets its fiduciary duties, upholds governance

guiding principles and is fully engaged; maintaining the integrity of Board governance; developing, updating and recommending
corporate governance principles and policies; and monitoring compliance with those principles and policies.

Board Members

= % ()
& = = g
T U G o
b 2 [ =
2 g 3
6 S o 5
= ~
g R ic
= 5
o]
%]
Jody Jimmy Boris
Hughes Longmire Haynes
“ | Y 5
b £k
a @
3 o
5 & ¢
) é o
B 8
Kelly Alan Voting members
Shepherd Ahrman

Chief Executive Officers

Inter-County Energy
Licking Valley RECC

Cumberland Valley Electric

Ted
Hampton

|9 v
O O
w w
o o
> Pnd
£ 2
2 2
S £
5 <
2 =
> =
9
= 3
%]

Non-voting members
Barry Allen
Myers Anderson

31 EKPC 2016 Annual Report




Audit Committee

Assists the Board in performing oversight of: the quality and integrity of financial statements; compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements related to finances; the independent auditor’s qualifications and independence; the performance of EKPC's internal
audit function and the oversight of the independent auditors; fraud detection and related procedures; and conflict-of-interest policies.

Board Members

&)
I

Clark Energy
Committee Chair
Shelby Energy

Fleming-Mason Energy

Bill Tim Wayne
Shearer Eldridge Stratton
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Licking Valley RECC
Board Secretary-Treasurer
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Voting members

Mike Kelly
Adams Shepherd

Chief Executive Officers
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Big Sandy RECC
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; Non-voting members
Bill Joni
Prather Hazelrigg
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EKPC Executive Staff

Back row, from lefi, are:

Steve McClure, Vice President of Human Resources and Support Services; David Smart, General Counsel; Barry Mayfield, Vice President of Strategic
Planning and External Affairs; Craig Johnson, Senior Vice President of Power Production; David Crews, Senior Vice President of Power Supply;
Mike McNalley, Executive Vice President and CFO; Tony Campbell, President and CEO; Don Mosier, Executive Vice President and COO.

Front row, from left, are:

Thomas Stachnik, Treasurer and Director of Finance; Denver York, Senior Vice President of Power Delivery and System Operations;
Jerry Purvis, Dirvector of Environmental Affairs; and Lesli Yates, Internal Auditor.
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EKPC Financial Leadership

Clockwise, from lefi. are:

Thomas Stachnik, Treasurer and Director of Finance;
Mike McNalley. Executive Vice President and CIFO:

Robin Haves. Director of Financial Planning and Analysis:
Narmada Nanjundan. Director of Risk Management.

and Michelle Carpenter. Controller.

EKPC Operational Leadership

Clockwise, from lefi, are:

Denver York, Senior Vice President of Power Delivery
and Svstem Operations:

David Crews. Senior Vice President of Power Supply:
Don Mosier. Executive Vice President and COO.,
Jerry Purvis, Direcior of Environmental Affairs: and

Craig Johnson. Senior Vice President of Power Production.
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Today, most of us take electricity and all that it provides for
granted. We don't think twice about hot showers or heating
dinner or turning on the TV. We just flip a switch or push

a button.

And most people don’t remember how hard life was before
the owner-member cooperatives formed East Kentucky
Power Cooperative in 1941.

The men and women who founded EKPC were guided by a
simple philosophy that still hoids true today: rural people can
work together to improve their quality of life by providing
the most affordable, reliable power possible.

Our not-for-profit organization started July 7, 1941, when
rural Kentuckians formed EKPC to generate and transmit
electric power.

. Those early pioneers fought fiercely against powerful
o interests for the right to build their own power supply.
. They constructed EKPC’s first power plant, Dale Station,
p on the banks of the Kentucky River, and the cooperative
continued to grow along with the energy demands of our
owner-members.

Thanks to the vision of EKPC's founders, the benefits of
rural electrification spread across America and beyond.

For example, J.K. Smith from Fleming-Mason Energy helped
organize East Kentucky Power and went on to bring electricity
to people in Ecuador and nations around the world.

From its humble beginnings, East Kentucky Power and the
owner-member co-ops grew steadily for 75 years and today
serve more than one million people across 87 counties.

Through the direction and guidance of the Board and CEO
Tony Campbell, EKPC has developed and implemented a
successful Strategic Plan, and dramatically improved the
system’s efficiencies and finances. EKPC added a new plant
to diversify our fleet of generating units with the purchase
of Bluegrass Generating Station, and developed a safety
program that has received national attention.

A new effort to add to the cooperative’s proud legacy is
under way, with plans to build one of Kentucky’s largest
solar farms in Winchester. EKPC and Kentucky's Touchstone
Energy Cooperatives are building thousands of solar panels
on 60 acres that will be visible to motorists as they pass
headquarters on |-64.

On this diamond anniversary, take a moment to think
what electric power has meant for rural people and
what the co-ops have done to transform Kentucky
by dramatically improving lives.

It's all about people, powering a bright future ahead.
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2016: Financial Highlights

2016 Performance and Strategic Targets

EKPC’s net margin was $53.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, an increase of $4.4 million over 2015.
Operating revenues were $887.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, a modest increase of $2.3 million from
the prior year. Mild weather and less favorable market
conditions prevailed much of the year and resulted in a
decrease in member and off-system sales revenue of $18.8
million and $7.3 million, respectively. However, this decrease
was offset by a $28.4 million increase in other

electric sales revenue which included PJM capacity market
revenue from EKPC's participation in the RPM auction for
the delivery year beginning June 2016 and other power
sales arrangements (operating leases).

Production operating expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2016 were $513.1 million, a $12.2 million
decrease from the prior year. These expenses, which are
comprised of fuel, operation and maintenance expenses,
and purchased power, are grouped together for comparative
purposes given that decisions to generate energy or purchase
energy on the open market are based on reliability constraints
and the most economic resources available within the PJM
market. Lower market prices and demand resulted in
purchased power decreasing $32.4 million. Increased EKPC
generation resulted in fuel expense increasing $18.7 million.

During 2016, EKPC surpassed goals set for affordability (total
cost billed to member systems), and financial strength (Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (DSC), Equity to Assets Ratio, and
Times Interest Earned Ratio (TIER)).

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

Total cost billed to owner-members was $64.77 mills per
kilowatt-hour, which was well below the target goal of
$67.73 mills/KWh and a decrease from the $66.79
achieved in 2015.

On financial strength, EKPC achieved a Debt Service Coverage
ratio of 1.33 in 2016, an equity-to-assets ratio of 15.5 and a
Times Interest Earned Ratio (TIER) of 1.48.

In November 2016, the Kentucky Public Service Commission
(PSC) approved EKPC’s application to construct a solar farm
with 32,300 panels on 60 acres at the Cooperative headquarters.
The solar farm, one of the largest in Kentucky, is expected

to begin generating electricity late in 2017. The addition of
this facility will move EKPC toward meeting another strategic
goal of diversifying the Cooperative’s generation portfolio.

Ratings agency upgrades credit rating

In the fall, Fitch Ratings upgraded EKPC's issuer credit rating to
“A-" with a stable outlook. EKPC had previously held a “BBB+"
rating with a positive outlook from Fitch.

In announcing the upgrade, Fitch cited EKPC'’s sustained
financial performance and increasingly diversified power

supply.



Five-Year Statistical Summary

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Net Margin - in thousands $53,708 $49,290 $64,845 $68,903 $52,836
TIER 148 1.44 1.56 1.61 1.46
DSC 133 1.26 1.30 1.34 122
Fuel Expense - in thousands 247,040 228,372 297,399 $292918 $310,642
Capital Expenditures - in thousands

Generation $35,703 $163,988 $41,793 $25,105 $84,216

Transmission & Distribution $29,963 $47,700 $20,937 $25,779 $20,681

General $5,712 $4,125 $10,172 $1,851 $958
Investment in Facilities - in thousands

Cost $4,077,618 $3,999,314 $3,867,127 $3,804,664 $3,737,247
Long-Term Debt - in thousands ** $2,794,578 $2,499,815 $2,632,276 $2,680,289 $2,656,514
Total Assets - in thousands ** $3,718,233 $3,330,753 $3,403,556 $3,370,055 $3,278,737
Number of Employees - full-time 696 670 666 643 664
Cost of Coal Purchased

$/ton $51.56 $51.84 $55.49 $58.01 $60.44

$/MBtu $2.24 $2.27 $2.44 $2.55 $2.65
Amount of Coal Purchased - tons 3,821,064 3,927,446 4,288,956 4,571,750 4,293,199
Generation - MWh 9,758,569 8,618,586 10,462,583 10,127,954 11,075,566
System Peak Demand - MW

Winter Season * 2,890 3,507 3,425 2,597 2,597

Summer Season 2,293 2,179 2,192 2,199 2,354
Sales to Other Utilities - MWh 717,130 711,081 805,511 509,140 223,609
Member Load Growth - %

Energy 3.02 (4.80) 372 3.89 (2.64)

Demand (4.81) (0.67) 3.23 318 (2.99)
Load Factor - % 51 A 44 56 56
Miles of Line 2,847 2,838 2,835 2,816 2,807
Installed Capacity - kVA 10,861,447 10,810,447 10,779,247 9,508,311 9,496,311
Distribution Substations 369 366 364 363 362

* Beginning in 2013, data reported represents seasonal peak achieved during the calendar year

* % Beginning in 2015, LT Debt and Total Assets are net of unamortized debt issuance costs
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Energy Sales to Members

MWh in Millions
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The accompanying financial statements of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. were prepared by management, which
is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and include amounts that are based on management’s best judgments and
estimates. The other financial information included in this annual report is consistent with the financial statements.

The cooperative maintains a system of internal controls, including accounting controls and internal auditing. The system
of controls provides for appropriate division of responsibility and the application of policies and procedures that are
consistent with high standards of accounting and administration. The cooperative believes that its system of internal
controls provides reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition

and that financial records are reliable for use in preparing financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by the cooperative’s independent certified public accountants, Ernst &
Young LLP, whose opinion appears on the next page.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consisting solely of directors and member system CEOs, meets with
Ernst & Young LLP, representatives of management and the internal auditor to review their activities and to discuss
accounting, auditing and financial matters and the carrying out of responsibilities and duties of each group.

Ernst & Young LLP has full and free access to meet with the Audit Committee to discuss their audit results and
opinions, without management representatives present, to allow for complete independence.

4 7 o . I .
/4;.&(&;'.25;'.-f-/aw7-¢-(“4 Erteemi ="
Anthony Campbell Mike McNalley
President and CEO Executive Vice President and CFO
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grnst & Young LLP Tel: +1 502 585 1400
Suite 2400 Fax: +1 502 584 4221
400 West Market Street ey.com

Building a better Louisville, KY 40202
working world

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of East Kentucky Power Cooperative,
Inc., which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related
statements of revenue and expenses and comprehensive margin, changes in members’ equities,
and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated
March 30, 2017 on our consideration of the East Kentucky Power Cooperatives, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.’s

internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
M v MLL?

March 30, 2017
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Assets

Electric plant:
In-service
Construction-in-progress

Less accumulated depreciation
Electric plant — net

Long-term accounts receivable
Restricted cash and investments
[nvestment securities:
Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investment
Accounts receivable
Fuel
Materials and supplies
Regulatory assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Regulatory assets
Deferred charges

Other noncurrent assets
Total assets

Members’ equities and liabilities
Members’ equities:

Memberships

Patronage and donated capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total members’ equities

Long-term debt

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Regulatory liabilities
Total current liabilities
Accrued postretirement benefit cost
Asset retirement obligations and other liabilities
Total members’ equities and liabilities

See notes to financial statements.

Balance Sheets
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31

2016

2015

4,043,504 $ 3,948,438
34,114 50,876
4,077,618 3,999,314
1,319,126 1,217,768
2,758,492 2,781,546
1,225 1,364
232,176 7,063
33,735 35,271
8,397 8,488
124,116 51,473
174,749 62,195
89,231 74,324
47,392 71,527
61,112 57,209
863 2,529

6,563 6.840
504,026 326,097
168,958 162,262
3,170 1,494
8,054 7,168

3,330,753

3,718,233 § 330,

2 3 2
588,897 535,189
(13,074) (23,244)
575,825 511,947
2,794,578 2,499,815
89,650 91,661
66,170 62,770
38,973 14,579
1,759 1,077
196,552 170,087
83,159 88,530
68,119 60,374
3.718233 § 3,330,753
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Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2016 2015
Operating revenue $ 887,419 §$ 885,054
Operating expenses:
Production:
Fuel 247,040 228,372
Other 151,105 149,553
Purchased power 114,954 147,354
Transmission and distribution 55,866 53,395
Regional market operations 4,524 4,366
Depreciation 106,366 95,164
General and administrative 57,276 52,105
Total operating expenses 737,131 730,309
Operating margin before fixed charges and other expenses 150,288 154,745
Fixed charges and other:
Interest expense on long-term debt 113,042 113,259
Amortization of debt expense 458 440
Accretion and other 314 (74)
Total fixed charges and other expenses 113,814 113,625
Operating margin 36,474 41,120
Nonoperating margin:
Interest income 17,233 8,974
Patronage capital allocations from other cooperatives 194 230
Regulatory settlements (20) -
Other (173) (1,034)
Total nonoperating margin 17,234 8,170
Net margin 53,708 49,290
Other comprehensive margin (loss):
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities 42) (72)
Postretirement benefit obligation gain (loss) 10,212 (19,824)
10,170 (19,896)
Comprehensive margin $ 63.878 § 29,394

See notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Members’ Equities
(Dollars in Thousands)

Accumulated
Other Total
Patronage  Donated Comprehensive Members’
Memberships  Capital Capital Loss Equities

Balance — December 31, 2014 $ 2§ 482864 $ 3035 $ (3,348) $ 482,553

Net margin - 49,290 - - 49,290
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities - - - (72) (72)
Postretirement benefit obligation loss = - —~ (19,824) (19,824)

Balance — December 31, 2015 2 532,154 3,035 (23,244) 511,947

Net margin - 53,708 - - 53,708
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities - - - 42) 42)

Postretirement benefit obligation gain — - - 10,212 10,212
Balance — December 31, 2016 $ 2_§ 585862 S 3,035 % (13.074) $ 575825

See notes (o financial statements,
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Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2016 2015
Operating activities
Net margin $ 53,708 $ 49,290
Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 106,366 95,164
Amortization of loan costs 1,132 1,146
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (14,907) 11,488
Fuel 24,135 (5,077)
Materials and supplies (3,903) (2,375)
Regulatory assets/liabilities 1,869 (15,852)
Accounts payable 7,002 (4,935)
Accrued expenses 24,394 629
Accrued postretirement benefit cost 4,841 (212)
Other (13,102) (5,268)
Net cash provided by operating activities 191,535 123,998
Investing activities
Additions to electric plant (74,634) (211,263)
Restricted deposits held in escrow - (6,000)
Maturities of debt service reserve securities 4,246 4,248
Purchases of debt service reserve securities (4,248) (4,248)
Maturities of available-for-sale securities 60,531 53,431
Purchases of available-for-securities (59,037) (55,112)
Maturities of held-to-maturity securities 91 91
Additional deposits with RUS restricted investment (474,225) (96,185)
Maturities of RUS restricted investment 136,560 188,303
Other 136 1,124
Net cash used in investing activities (410,580) (125,611)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 784,000 665
Principal payments on long-term debt (491,167) (130,649)
Debt issuance costs (1,145) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 291,688 (129,984)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 72,643 (131,597)
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 51,473 183.070
Cash and cash equivalents — end of year $ 124,116 $ 51,473
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
Cash paid for interest $ 88.631 $ 113,324
Noncash investing transactions:
Additions to electric plant included in accounts payable $ 14,240 $ 17,842
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities $ 42) § (712)

See notes to financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

East Kentucky Power Cooperative (the Cooperative or EKPC) is a not-for-profit electric
generation and transmission cooperative incorporated in 1941 that provides wholesale electric
service to 16 distribution members with territories that include parts of 87 counties in Kentucky.
The majority of customers served by members are residential. Each of the members has entered
into a wholesale power agreement with the Cooperative, which remains in effect until 2051.
The rates charged to members are regulated by the Kentucky Public Service Commission
(PSC or Commission).

The Cooperative owns and operates two coal-fired generation plants, twelve combustion turbines
and six landfill gas plants. In addition, the Cooperative has rights to 170 megawatts of
hydroelectric power from the Southeastern Power Administration. One simple cycle natural gas
unit is designated to serve a capacity purchase and tolling agreement through April 30, 2019.
The capacity and energy from one landfill gas plant is designated to serve a member system
through a ten-year purchase power agreement.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with policies prescribed or permitted by the
Commission and the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service (RUS),
which conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) in all material respects. As a rate-regulated entity, the Cooperative’s financial
statements reflect actions of regulators that result in the recording of revenues and expenses in
different time periods than enterprises that are not rate regulated in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 980,
Regulated Operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Electric Plant and Maintenance

Electric plant is stated at cost. The cost of assets constructed by the Cooperative includes
material, labor, contractor and overhead costs.

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor items of property, is charged
to operating expense. The cost of replacement of depreciable property units, as distinguished
from minor items, is charged to electric plant. The cost of units replaced or retired, including cost
of removal, net of any salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation

Depreciation for the generating plants and transmission facilities is provided on the basis of
estimated useful lives at straight-line composite rates. Rates applied to electric plant in service
for both 2016 and 2015 are:

Transmission and distribution plant 0.71%-3.42%
General plant 2.00%—-20.00%

The production plant assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition to
the end of life of the respective plant, which ranged from 2030 to 2051 in 2016, and 2019 to
2051 in 2015.

Depreciation expense was $106.4 million and $95.2 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
Cooperative received PSC approval to charge depreciation associated with asset retirement
obligations to regulatory assets. These regulatory assets are charged to depreciation expense as
recovery occurs. Depreciation charged to regulatory assets was $10.5 million and $6.8 million in
2016 and 2015, respectively.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report



East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Asset Impairment

Long-lived assets held and used by the Cooperative are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Specifically, the evaluation for impairment involves comparison of an asset’s
carrying value to the estimated undiscounted cash flows the asset is expected to generate over its
remaining life. If this evaluation were to conclude that the carrying value of the asset is impaired,
an impairment charge would be recorded as a charge to operations based on the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and its fair value. No impairment was recognized for
long-lived assets during the years ended December 31, 2016 or 2015.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments represent funds restricted by contractual stipulations or other
legal requirements. Funds designated for the repayment of debt within one year are shown as
current assets on the balance sheets. All other restricted cash and investments are shown as
noncurrent on the balance sheets. Restricted cash and investment activity is classified as
investing activities on the statements of cash flows.

The Cooperative participates in the cushion of credit program administered by the RUS. Under
the cushion of credit program, RUS borrowers may make voluntary irrevocable deposits into a
special account. The account balance accrues interest at a rate of five percent per year.
The amounts in the cushion of credit account (deposits and earned interest) can only be used to
make scheduled principal and interest payments on loans made or guaranteed by the RUS. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the balances in the cushion of credit program were $399.9 million
and $62.2 million, respectively.

On December 29, 2015, the Cooperative became the lessor in a capacity purchase and tolling
agreement that is effective through April 30, 2019. As part of the agreement, the Cooperative
was required to pledge cash collateral with a third party that will be refunded over the term of the
contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Restricted cash and investments at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following
(dollars in thousands):

2016 2015
Debt service reserve (Note 6) $ 1,065 $ 1,063
Funds restricted by tolling agreement 6,000 6,000
Noncurrent restricted investment — RUS cushion of credit 225,111 -
Restricted cash and investments — noncurrent 232,176 7,063
Current restricted investment — RUS cushion of credit 174,749 62,195
Total restricted cash and investments $ 406,925 $ 69,258

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Cooperative considers temporary investments having an original maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
consisted primarily of money market mutual funds and investments in commercial paper.

Investment Securities

Investment securities are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost when
management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Investment securities
are classified as available-for-sale when they might be sold before maturity. Available-for-sale
securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other
comprehensive margin (loss) on the statements of revenue and expenses and comprehensive
margin.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Gains and losses on

sales are based on the amortized cost of the security sold. Investment securities are written down
to fair value when a decline in fair value is other-than-temporary.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash, receivables and certain other current liabilities approximates fair
value due to the short maturity of the instruments.

The Cooperative uses fair value to measure certain financial instruments. The fair value of a
financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (the exit
price). Observable inputs or unobservable inputs, defined by ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, may be used in the calculation of fair value. ASC Topic 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

e Level I — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

» Level 2— Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly;

» Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measure and unobservable.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The inputs used to measure cash equivalents are Level | measurements, as the money market
funds are exchange traded funds in an active market. The inputs used to measure the available-
for-sale and debt service reserve investments are Level 1 measurements, as the securities are
based on quoted market prices for identical investments or securities. The inputs used to measure
financial transmission rights (FTR) derivatives are Level 2 measurements, as the FTR derivatives
are valued based upon recent auction data from the regional transmission organization.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Estimated fair values of the Cooperative’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2016 and
2015, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ - $ -
Available-for-sale securities 33,735 33,735 - -
Debt service reserve 1,065 1,065 - -
FTR derivatives 537 - 537 -

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ - $ =
Available for sale securities 35,271 35,271 - -
Debt service reserve 1,063 1,063 E -
FTR derivatives 473 - 473 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The estimated fair values of the Cooperative’s financial instruments carried at cost at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, were as follows (in thousands):

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Held-to-maturity
investments S 8397 $ 9,868 $ 8488 §$ 9,558
Long-term debt 2,884,228 3,201,920 2,591,476 2,986,239

The inputs used to measure held-to-maturity investment securities are considered Level 2 and are
based on third-party yield rates of similarly maturing instruments determined by recent market
activity. The fair value of long-term debt, including current maturities and prepayment costs, is
calculated using published interest rates for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities and
is a Level 2 fair value measurement.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss that would occur if suppliers or customers did not meet
their contractual obligations to EKPC. Concentration of credit risk occurs when significant
suppliers or customers possess similar characteristics that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be affected by the same events.

The Cooperative’s sales are primarily to its member cooperatives and totaled approximately
$830.0 million and $848.7 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively. Accounts receivable at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, were primarily from billings to member cooperatives.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, individual accounts receivable balances that exceeded 10% of
total accounts receivable are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2016 2015
Owen Electric Cooperative $ 12,272 $ 11,039
South Kentucky RECC 9,698 7,716
Blue Grass Energy Cooperative 9,506 7,698
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories of fuel and materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost or market.
Upon removal from inventory for use, the average cost method is used.

Derivatives

The Cooperative’s activities expose it to a variety of market risks including interest rates and
commodity prices. Management has established risk management policies and strategies to
reduce the potentially adverse effects that the volatility of the markets may have on its operating
results. These policies and strategies include the use of derivative instruments and hedging
activities. These derivative instruments generally qualify for hedge accounting or the normal
purchase and normal sales exclusion under ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging.
The Company recognizes all of its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet at fair value. If hedge treatment is obtained, unrealized gains or losses resulting
from these instruments are deferred as a component of accumulated other comprehensive margin
(loss) until the corresponding item being hedged is settled, at which time the gain or loss is
recognized in net margin. Gains or losses for items not qualifying for hedge treatment are
recognized immediately in margin. At December 31, 2016, the Cooperative had FTR derivative
assets of $0.5 million and $0.2 million in related liabilities. At December 31, 2015, the
Cooperative had FTR derivative assets of $0.5 million and $0.4 million in related liabilities.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

ASC Topic 980 applies to regulated entities for which rates are designed to recover the costs of
providing service. In accordance with this topic, certain items that would normally be reflected in
the statements of revenue and expenses are deferred on the balance sheets. Regulatory assets
represent probable future revenues associated with certain incurred costs, which will be
recovered from customers through the rate-making process. Regulatory assets are charged to
earnings as collection of the cost in rates is recognized or when future recovery is no longer
probable. Conversely, regulatory liabilities represent future reductions in revenues associated
with amounts that are to be credited to customers through the rate-making process.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Debt Issuance Costs

The Cooperative adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of
Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs and ASU
2015-15, Interest—Imputation of Interest Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements in 2016
with full retrospective application, as required. Accordingly, the adoption of these amendments
resulted in $1.5 million and $1.4 million of debt issuance costs previously reported as deferred
charges being presented as a direct deduction from long-term debt at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. Debt issuance costs associated with the credit facility revolver continue to be
shown as part of deferred charges on the balance sheet.

Debt issuance costs are amortized to interest expense over the life of the respective debt using
the effective interest rate method or the straight-line method when results approximate the
effective interest rate method.

Asset Retirement Obligations

ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement Obligations, requires legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at fair value when incurred and capitalized as
part of the related long-lived asset, including asset retirement obligations where an obligation
exists even though the method or timing of settlement may be conditional. The liability is
accreted to its present value each period and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful
life of the related asset. When the asset is retired, the entity settles the obligation for its recorded
amount or incurs a gain or loss.

Fair value of each respective ARO, when incurred, is determined by discounting expected future
cash outflows associated with required retirement activities using a credit adjusted risk-free rate.
Cash outflows for retirement activities are based upon market information, historical information
and management’s estimates and would be considered Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy.

The Cooperative’s asset retirement obligations (ARO) represent the requirements related to
asbestos abatement and reclamation and capping of ash disposal sites at its coal-fired plants.
Increases in ARO obligations in 2016 and 2015 are primarily related to changes in the estimated
cost to settle ash disposal sites to comply with the closure and post-closure requirements
contained in the EPA’s final rule regulating the management of coal combustion residuals
(CCR). Settlement activities are associated with the reclamation and capping of ash disposal
sites.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Cooperative continues to evaluate the useful lives of its plants and costs of remediation
required by law.

The following table represents the details of asset retirement obligation activity as reported on
the accompanying Balance Sheets (in thousands):

2016 2015
Balance — beginning of year $ 56,408 $ 33,263
Liabilities incurred 1,153 -
Liabilities settled (12,934) (4,740)
Estimated cash flow revisions 17,343 26,973
Accretion 1,464 912
Balance — end of year $ 63,434 $ 56,408

As discussed in Note 5, the PSC granted regulatory asset treatment of accretion and depreciation
associated with AROs on EKPC’s books by type and location beginning in January 2014. These
regulatory assets will be charged to accretion expense and depreciation expense as recovery of
settlement costs occurs. The Cooperative plans to seek similar regulatory asset treatment for
accretion and depreciation associated with an ARO obligation incurred at a new location in 2016.

Accretion charged to regulatory assets in 2016 and 2015 was $1.5 million and $1.3 million,
respectively. Accretion expense recognized in 2016 was $0.3 million which represented the
recovery of settlement costs associated with the Dale Station ash transfer project. Accretion
expense recognized in 2015 was $(0.07) million which represented the net impact of a PSC
ordered credit for accretion expense recognized in 2014 and recovery of settlement costs
associated with the Dale Station ash transfer project.

Rate Matters

Operating revenues from sales to members consist primarily of electricity sales pursuant to
long-term wholesale power contracts which are maintained with each of the Cooperative’s
members. These wholesale power contracts obligate each member to pay EKPC for demand and
energy furnished in accordance with rates established by the PSC. Electricity revenues are
recognized when energy is provided. Energy provided is determined based on month-end meter
readings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The base rates charged by the Cooperative are regulated by the PSC. Any change in base rates
requires that EKPC file an application with the PSC and interested parties may seek intervention
in the proceeding if they satisfy certain regulatory requirements. After reviewing all the
documentation in the case, the Commission has ten months to complete its processing of the
application and issue an order. EKPC’s last base rate case was authorized by the PSC on
January 14, 2011,

The PSC has adopted a uniform fuel adjustment clause for all electric utilities within its
jurisdiction. Under this clause, fuel cost above or below a stated amount per kWh is charged or
credited to the member cooperatives for all energy sales during the month following actual fuel
costs being incurred. The regulatory asset or liability represents the amount that has been under-
or over-recovered due to timing or adjustments to the mechanism.

The PSC has an environmental cost recovery mechanism that allows utilities to recover certain
costs incurred in complying with the Federal Clean Air Act as amended and those federal, state,
and local environmental requirements which apply to coal combustion wastes and byproducts
from facilities utilized for the production of energy from coal. This environmental surcharge is
billed on a percentage of revenue basis, one month following the actual costs incurred.
The regulatory asset or liability represents the amount that has been under- or over-recovered due
to timing or adjustments to the mechanism.

Members’ Equities

Memberships represent contributions to the Cooperative made by members. Should the
Cooperative cease business, these amounts, if available, will be returned to the members.

Patronage capital represents net margin allocated to the Cooperative’s members on a
contribution-to-gross margin basis pursuant to the provisions of its bylaws. The Cooperative’s
bylaws prohibit the retirement of capital contributed by or allocated to members unless, after any
proposed retirement, the total capital of the Cooperative equals or exceeds 20% of total assets.

In addition, provisions of certain financing documents prohibit the retirement of capital until
stipulated requirements related to aggregate margins and equities are met. Accordingly, at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, no patronage capital was available for refund or retirement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Comprehensive Margin

Comprehensive margin includes both net margin and other comprehensive margin (loss). Other
comprehensive margin (loss) represents the change in unrealized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities, as well as the change in the funded status of the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation. The Cooperative presents each item of other comprehensive margin (loss) on
a net basis in the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin.
Reclassification adjustments are disclosed in Note 8. For any item required under U.S. GAAP to
be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period, the affected line item(s)
on the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin are provided.

Income Taxes

The Cooperative is exempt under Section 501(c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code from federal
income tax for any year in which at least 85% of its gross income is derived from members but is
responsible for income taxes on certain unrelated business income. ASC Topic 740, Income
Taxes, clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial
statements. This interpretation requires financial statement recognition of the impact of a tax
position if a position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical
merits of the position. Additionally, ASC Topic 740 provides guidance on measurement,
recognition, classification, accounting in interim periods, and disclosure requirements for
uncertain tax positions. The Cooperative has determined that more than 85% of its gross income
is derived from members and it meets the exemption status under the Section 501(c)(12).

Regional Transmission Organization

The Cooperative is a transmission-owning member of PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJM) and
functional control of certain transmission facilities is maintained by PJM. Open access to the
EKPC transmission system is managed by PJM pursuant to the FERC approved PJM Open
Access Transmission Tariff and the Cooperative is an active participant in PJM’s Regional
Transmission Planning process, which develops a single approved transmission plan for the
entire PJM footprint. Energy related purchases and sales transactions within PJM are recorded on
an hourly basis with all transactions within each market netted to a single purchase or sale for
each hour.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Power Sales Arrangements

The Cooperative is the lessor under power sales arrangements that are required to be accounted
for as operating leases due to the terms of the agreements. The details of those agreements are
discussed in Note 10. The revenues from these arrangements are included in operating revenues
on the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin.

New Accounting Guidance

On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), or ASU 2014-09. The core principle of the guidance is
that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 will supersede the revenue recognition
requirements in the Revenue Recognition Topic 605 of the ASC and most industry-specific
guidance, and creates the Revenue from Contracts with Customers Topic 606 of the ASC.
In August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-14, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date to provide a one year delay
in the effective date of ASU 2014-09. ASU 2014-09 will be effective for the Cooperative
beginning in 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact
of adopting this guidance, as well as the transition method it will use.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-15, Presentation of
Financial Statements — Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosures of Uncertainties about an
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, or ASU 2014-15. The amendment in this ASU
requires management to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Substantial doubt exists when it is probable that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations
as they become due within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.
Disclosures are required if conditions or events give rise to substantial doubt. The Company
adopted this update in 2016 and it did not have an impact on our disclosures.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842)
or ASU 2016-02. The core principle of this revised accounting guidance requires that lessees
recognize all leases (other than leases with a term of twelve months or less) on the balance sheet
as lease liabilities, based upon the present value of the lease payments, with corresponding right
of use assets. ASU 2016-02 also makes targeted changes to other aspects of the current guidance,
including the lease classification criteria and the lessor accounting model. The amendments in
ASU 2016-02 will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2020. Early adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this guidance.

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-15, Statement of Cash
Flows (Topic 230) — Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Payments, or ASU 2016-15.
This amendment provides specific guidance on certain cash flow presentation and classification
issues in order to reduce diversity in practice on the statement of cash flows. This amendment
will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The
guidance requires application using a retrospective transition method. The Company is currently
assessing the impact that this amendment will have on our statements of cash flows.

In November 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-18, Statement of Cash
Flows (Topic 230) — Restricted Cash, or ASU 2016-18. This amendment requires the statement
of cash flows to explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and
amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Amounts described
as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents will be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. This amendment will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in
2019. Early adoption is permitted. The guidance is applied using a retrospective transition
method to each period presented. The Company is currently assessing the impact that this
amendment will have on our statements of cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Electric Plant in Service

Electric plant in service at December 31, 2016 and 2015, consisted of the following
(in thousands):

2016 2015
Production plant $ 2,999,187 $ 2,975,527
Transmission plant 796,311 785,443
General plant 118,789 113,246
Completed construction, not classified, and other 129,217 74,222
Electric plant in service $ 4,043,504 $ 3,948,438

On December 29, 2015, the Cooperative purchased three simple cycle combustion turbine units
and related facilities near LaGrange, Kentucky with a total winter capacity of 594 megawatts.
The purchase resulted in an additional $128.5 million included in plant in service at
December 31, 2015.

As discussed in Note 5, the PSC granted regulatory asset treatment for the abandonment of Dale
Station generating assets at December 31, 2015. Assets of $94.3 million and accumulated
depreciation of $91.1 million, respectively, were removed from plant. Two regulatory assets
comprising the remaining net book value of $3.2 million were established at December 31, 2015.

3. Long-Term Accounts Receivable
Long-term accounts receivable represents interest-bearing notes to three of the Cooperative’s
member systems for the buyout of EKPC’s joint ownership of their propane companies.

The member systems make principal and interest (prime rate minus one-half of one percent,
adjusted annually) payments. The notes are payable in full in 2025.
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4. Investment Securities

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale investment securities at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2016
U.S. Treasury Bill $ 25,176 $ - 8§ 23) § 25,153
Zero coupon bond 8,587 — (5) 8,582
$ 33,763 $ - $ 28) § 33,735
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2015
U.S. Treasury Bill $ 26,695 $ - $ 9 $ 26,686
Zero coupon bond 8,562 28 (5 8,585
$ 35257 § 28 $ (14) $§ 35,271

Proceeds from maturities of securities were $60.5 million and $53.4 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Investment Securities (continued)

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of held-to-maturity investment securities at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2016
National Rural Utilities Cooperative
Finance Corporation:
3%-5% capital term certificates  § 7,656 $ 1,438 §$ - $ 9,094
6.5875% subordinated
term certificate 250 69 - 319
0% subordinated term certificate 491 - (36) 455
$ 8397 § 1,507 $ (36) $ 9,868
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2015
National Rural Utilities Cooperative
Finance Corporation:
3%—5% capital term certificates ~ § 7,656 $ 1,025 $ - 3 8,681
6.5875% subordinated
term certificate 275 89 - 364
0% subordinated term certificate 557 B (44) 513
$ 8,488 $ 1,114 $ (44) $ 9,558
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Investment Securities (continued)

All investment securities held to maturity with unrealized losses at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
have maturities of 12 months or more. The amortized cost and fair value of securities at
December 31, 2016, by contractual maturity, are shown below (dollars in thousands). Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers may have the right
to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Available-for-sale:
Due in one year or less $ 33,763 $ 33,735
$ 33,763 § 33,735
Held-to-maturity:
Due after one year through five years $ 691 $ 721
Due after five years through ten years 708 742
Due after ten years 6,998 8,405

$ 8,397 § 9,868

5. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

In 2010, the Cooperative recorded a regulatory asset of $157.1 million for construction costs
expended on the cancelled Smith Unit 1 plant based on the guidance for abandonment of plant
costs for regulated entities and management’s assertion that full return on investment was
probable. On February 28, 2011, the PSC approved the Cooperative’s request to surrender the
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) for Smith Unit 1 and in a separate
order, authorized the establishment of a regulatory asset for the construction costs incurred and
the Cooperative’s estimate of the costs to unwind vendor contracts. During 2011, the
Cooperative negotiated final settlement of the Smith Unit 1 contracts, resulting in a reduction of
the regulatory asset balance to $150.8 million at December 31, 2011. Additional minimal costs
have been incurred each year to maintain the assets. The balance of the regulatory asset was
reduced by a $1 million non-refundable exclusivity payment from a prospective buyer in 2013.
The balance was further reduced by an additional $1.8 million for parts used by another EKPC
generating unit for maintenance to bring the regulatory asset balance to $148.8 million at
December 31, 2016. Effective January 1, 2017, the PSC approved a Stipulation and
Recommendation Agreement between EKPC and intervenors which enabled EKPC to begin
amortizing the regulatory asset balance, net of estimated mitigation and salvage efforts, over a
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (continued)

period of ten years. PJM capacity market revenues through delivery year 2018 will be used to
offset the expense until EKPC’s next base rate case. The amortization associated with the
remaining balance of the regulatory asset will be included for recovery in EKPC’s next general
base rate case.

In 2015, the PSC approved EKPC’s request to recognize depreciation and accretion expenses
related to its asbestos abatement and ash disposal AROs in existence at December 31, 2014 as
regulatory assets for 2014 and all subsequent years. Also, in a separate proceeding, the PSC
approved recovery of the costs that will settle the Dale Station ash disposal ARO through the
environmental surcharge mechanism. The associated regulatory asset is being expensed as
recovery occurs. While the Cooperative has not yet requested recovery of the other ARO related
regulatory assets, management believes it is probable that the PSC will allow the Cooperative to
recover the full amount through rates or other mechanisms.

On February 11, 2016, the PSC authorized the Cooperative to establish two regulatory assets for
the abandonment of Dale Station at December 31, 2015, representing its net book value of
$3.2 million. One regulatory asset was established in the amount of $2.4 million with a forty-two
month amortization, which is consistent with the remaining depreciable life of the asset included
in current rates. The balance of this regulatory asset was $1.6 million at December 31, 2016. A
separate regulatory asset of $0.8 million, which represents the balance of capital projects
remaining to be recovered in the environmental surcharge at December 31, 2015, will be
considered for recovery, along with an associated return, during EKPC’s next rate case.
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5. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Regulatory assets (liabilities) were comprised of the following as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 (dollars in thousands):

2016 2015
Plant abandonment — Smith Unit 1 $ 148834 $ 148,750
Plant abandonment — Dale Station 2,414 3,169
ARO-related depreciation and accretion expenses 17,710 10,343
Environmental cost recovery - 2,529
Fuel adjustment clause 863 =

$ 169821 § 164,791

Environmental cost recovery S (1,759) $ -
Fuel adjustment clause - (1,077)
(1,759) $ (1,077)

@&

6. Long-Term Debt

The Cooperative executed an Indenture of Mortgage, Security Agreement and Financing
Statement, dated as of October 11, 2012 (Indenture) between the Cooperative, as Grantor, to U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee. The Indenture provides first mortgage note holders and
tax-exempt bond holders with a pro-rated interest in substantially all owned assets.
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

First mortgage notes:

2.30%—7.99%, payable quarterly to Federal Financing
Bank (FFB) in varying amounts through 2044,
weighted average 4.26%

5.13% payable quarterly to RUS in varying
amounts through 2024

Variable rate, 3.30% at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
payable quarterly to CFC in varying amounts
through 2024

First Mortgage Bonds, Series 2014A, fixed rate of
4.61%, payable semi-annual, matures February 6, 2044

Tax-exempt bonds:

Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds, Series 1993B,
variable rate bonds, due August 15, 2023 0.95% and
0.65% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds, fixed rate of 0.40%
payable quarterly to CFC to December 1, 2023

Promissory notes:
Variable rate notes payable to CFC, 1.63% at
December 31, 2016
4.05%-5.50% fixed rate notes payable to National
Cooperative Services Corporation, weighted
average 4.92%
Total debt
Less debt issuance costs
Total debt adjusted for debt issuance costs
Less current maturities
Total long-term debt

Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015, consisted of the following
(in thousands):

2016 2015

$ 2,261,098 $ 2,323,192
5,534 6,159
6,425 7,469
194,000 199,000
4,500 5,000
3,109 4,306
400,000 35,000
11,094 12,801
2,885,760 2,592,927
(1,532) (1,451)
2,884,228 2,591,476
(89,650) (91,661)

$ 2,794,578 $ 2,499.815
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)
First Mortgage Notes and Bonds

The Cooperative received loan funds in varying amounts through its first mortgage notes payable
to RUS and the Federal Financing Bank. All such loans are subject to certain conditions outlined
by RUS. Listed below are descriptions of those loan applications for which additional funds were
advanced to the Cooperative during the year and the status of any remaining funds approved and
available for advance at December 31, 2016. The amounts outstanding under these notes are
$2.3 billion and $5.5 million at December 31, 2016.

In May 2015, the Cooperative submitted to RUS a loan application in the amount of
$90.6 million for various transmission projects. The loan was approved by RUS in July 2015. No
funds were advanced as of December 31, 2016. The loan documents were subsequently executed
in January 2017 with a maturity date of December 31, 2049; $31.5 million was advanced in
February 2017.

In June 2015, the Cooperative submitted to RUS a loan application in the amount of
$238.9 million for various generation projects. The loan was revised to $221.8 million and
approved by RUS in September 2015. The loan documents were subsequently executed in
January 2017 with a maturity date of December 31, 2049; $23.2 million was advanced in
February 2017.

In August 2015, a loan application was submitted for the acquisition of the assets of Bluegrass
Generation Company, LLC in the amount of $131.8 million. The loan was approved by RUS in
February 2016. The loan documents were executed in January 2017 with a maturity date of
December 31, 2035; $128.8 million was advanced in February 2017.

In 1984, 1995 and 1998, EKPC entered into secured loans with CFC that initially totaled
$20.5 million. As of December 31, 2016, the amount outstanding under these notes is
$6.4 million.

On December 11, 2013, the Cooperative entered into a Bond Purchase Agreement for
$200 million 4.61% First Mortgage Bonds, Series 2014A due February 2044. The transaction
closed and funded on February 6, 2014. The debt is secured on equal footing with the
Cooperative’s other secured debt under the Indenture. The amount outstanding under these notes
is $194 million at December 31, 2016.
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Tax-Exempt Bonds

The interest rate on the Series 1993B Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds is subject to change
semiannually. The interest rate adjustment period on the variable rate bonds may be converted to
a weekly, semiannual, annual or three-year basis, or to a fixed-rate basis, at the option of the
Cooperative. A $5 million CFC guarantee secures payment of the Series 1993B bonds and has an
expiration date of August 15, 2023. The 1993B solid waste disposal revenue bonds require that
debt service reserve funds be on deposit with a trustee throughout the term of the bonds in the
amount of $1.1 million. In addition, mandatory sinking fund payments are required ranging from
$0.5 million in 2016 to $0.7 million in 2023. Debt service reserve and construction funds are
held by a trustee and are invested primarily in U.S. Government securities and CFC promissory
notes. These funds are included in restricted cash and investments on the accompanying Balance
Sheets and have a fair value of approximately $1.1 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

In January 2008, EKPC was approved to receive up to $8.6 million to finance certain qualified
renewable energy projects with Clean Renewable Energy Bonds. The loan was fully advanced in
July 2009. The amount outstanding at December 31, 2016 is $3.1 million.

In September 2016, EKPC was authorized by the IRS to issue $19.8 million in New Clean
Renewable Energy Bonds to finance a planned community solar facility. In February 2017,
EKPC issued an $18 million note to CFC, which has been designated as a New Clean Renewable
Energy Bond. The remainder of the authorization expired on March 14, 2017.

Promissory Notes

On July 6, 2016, the Cooperative entered into a new $600 million unsecured credit facility with
CFC as the lead arranger, replacing its previously existing $500 million unsecured revolving
credit facility. The new facility consists of a $500 million revolving tranche and a $100 million
term loan tranche. This new facility matures on July 6, 2021 and is to be utilized for general
corporate purposes including capital construction projects. The agreement allows the
Cooperative to request two one-year maturity extensions and/or an increase in revolving
commitments of up to $200 million. The Cooperative used proceeds from the new facility to
repay the remaining $340 million of outstanding borrowings on the previously existing credit
facility. As of December 31, 2016, the Cooperative had outstanding borrowings of $400 million
(including the $100 million unsecured term loan). As of December 31, 2016, the availability
under the credit facility was $200 million.
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

In December 2010, the Cooperative entered into an unsecured loan agreement with the National
Cooperative Services Corporation for $23.8 million to refinance indebtedness to RUS. As of
December 31, 2016, the amount outstanding under these notes is $11.1 million.

Estimated annual maturities of long-term debt adjusted for debt issuance costs for the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2016, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31

2017 $ 89,650
2018 90,520
2019 92,032
2020 94,398
2021 97,287
Thereafter 2,420,341

$ 2,884,228

The Indenture and certain other debt agreements contain provisions which, among other
restrictions, require the Cooperative to maintain certain financial ratios. The Cooperative was in
compliance with these financial ratios at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

As of December 31, 2016, the Cooperative has $3.3 million outstanding in a letter of credit with
the Commonwealth of Kentucky for Worker’s Compensation.

As of December 31, 2016, the Cooperative has pledged securities of $8.4 million with the
United States Department of Labor for Federal Longshore Harbor Workers and the
Commonwealth of Kentucky.

7. Retirement Benefits
Pension Plan

Pension benefits for employees hired prior to January 1, 2007, are provided through participation
in the National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) Retirement and Security Plan
(RS Plan). The plan is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401 and tax exempt
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is considered a multiemployer plan under
the accounting standards. The plan sponsor’s Employer Identification Number is 53-0116145
and the Plan Number is 333.
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

A unique characteristic of a multiemployer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all
plan assets are available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not
maintained for participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer may
be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers.

The Cooperative’s contributions to the RS Plan in 2016 and 2015 represented less than 5 percent
of the total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. The Cooperative made
contributions to the plan of $8.3 million and $8.2 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively. There
have been no significant changes that affect the comparability of 2016 and 2015 contributions.

For the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required and therefore, not determined,
under the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations
and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the
RS Plan was over 80 percent funded on January 1, 2016 and January 1, 2015, based on the PPA
funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates. Because the provisions of the
PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and surcharges are not applicable.
Future contribution requirements are determined each year as part of the actuarial valuation of
the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.

Retirement Savings Plan

The Cooperative offers a Retirement Savings Plan for all employees who are eligible to
participate in the Cooperative’s benefit programs. The plan allows participants to make
contributions by salary reduction, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. For
employees hired prior to January 1, 2007, the Cooperative makes matching contributions to the
account of each participant up to 2.0% of the participant’s compensation. For employees hired on
or after January 1, 2007, the Cooperative will automatically contribute 6.0% of base wages and
match the employee contribution up to 4.0%. The Cooperative contributed approximately
$3.1 million and $2.6 million to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Employees vest immediately in their contributions and the contributions of
the Cooperative.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report

72



East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

73

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Retirement Benefits (continued)
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Cooperative provides a 457(f) Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to executives of the
organization. The plan is considered a defined contribution plan whereby annual contributions
are made based upon a percentage of base salary. Participants become 100% vested and the
account balance paid out upon attaining age 62 or if separation occurs due to involuntary
termination without cause, disability, or death. Separation for any other reason before age 62 will
result in participants forfeiting their benefits.

Supplemental Death Benefit Plan

The Cooperative provides a Supplemental Death Benefit Plan to all employees eligible to
participate in the pension plan. The supplemental death benefit is payable to a deceased
employee’s beneficiary if the lump sum value of a 100% survivor benefit under the pension plan
exceeds the pension plan benefits plus the Cooperative’s group life insurance proceeds.
Management believes that any liability related to this plan will not have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Postretirement Medical Benefits
The Cooperative sponsors a defined benefit plan that provides medical and life insurance
coverage to retirees and their dependents. Participating retirees and dependents contribute 50%

of the projected cost of coverage. For purposes of the liability estimates, the substantive plan is
assumed to be the same as the written plan. The plan is not funded.
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The following sets forth the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, the change in plan
assets, and the components of accrued postretirement benefit cost and net periodic benefit cost as
of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (dollars in thousands):

2016 2015
Change in benefit obligation:

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation —

beginning of year 92,546 71,206
Service cost 1,690 1,485
Interest cost 4,201 2,999
Participants’ contributions 1,301 1,176
Benefits paid (3,575) (4,144)
Actuarial (gain) loss (9,294) 19.824

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation — end of year 86,869 92,546

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets — beginning of year - -
Employer contributions 2,274 2,968
Participant contributions 1,301 1,176
Benefits paid (3,575) (4,144)
Fair value of plan assets — end of year — -
Funded status — end of year (86,869) (92,546)
Amounts recognized in balance sheet consists of:

Current liabilities 3,710 4,016

Noncurrent liabilities 83,159 88,530
Total amount recognized in balance sheet 86,869 92,546
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive

margin — unrecognized actuarial loss (13,046) (23,258)
Net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost 1,690 1,485

Interest cost 4,201 2,999

Amortization of net actuarial gain 918 -

Net periodic benefit cost 6,809 4,484
Net gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive margin 10,212 (19,824)
Amounts expected to be realized in next fiscal year —

amortization of net gain (loss) (286) 918
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The per capita claim cost assumptions for the postretirement benefit plan is based upon the
Cooperative’s own retiree-specific medical and prescription drug claim experience. Improved
experience over 2015 resulted in a decrease in the December 31, 2016 obligation of
$10.3 million which was offset by an increase in the obligation of $1 million due to changes in
the discount rate and mortality assumptions.

The discount rate used to determine the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was
4.48% and 4.64% for 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Cooperative expects to contribute approximately $3.7 million to the plan in 2017.
The expected benefit payments from the plan, which reflect anticipated future service, are

(dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2017 $ 3,711
2018 3,836
2019 3,902
2020 3,700
2021 3,853
2022 —2026 22,256

For measurement purposes, a 6.7% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered
health care benefits was used for the year ended December 31, 2016. The rate is assumed to
decline to 4.5% after 20 years. The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect
on the amounts reported. For example, a 1% increase in the health care trend rate would increase
the service and interest costs by $1.1 million and increase the postretirement benefit obligation
by $13.8 million. A 1% decrease in the health care trend rate would decrease total service and
interest costs by $0.9 million and decrease the postretirement benefit obligation by $11.2 million.
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8. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Margin (Loss) by Component

The following table represents the details of accumulated other comprehensive margin (loss)
activity by component (in thousands):

Unrealized Gain

(Loss) on Accumulated
Postretirement Investments Other
Benefit Available for Comprehensive
Obligation Sale Margin (Loss)
Balance — December 31, 2014 $ (3,434) $ 86 $ (3,348)
Other comprehensive loss before
reclassifications (19,824) (72) (19,896)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive margin — - -
Net current period other comprehensive loss (19,824) (72) (19,896)
Balance — December 31, 2015 (23,258) 14 (23,244)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before
reclassifications 9,294 (42) 9,252
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive margin 918 - 918
Net current period other comprehensive gain (loss) 10,212 (42) 10,170
Balance — December 31, 2016 S (13,046) $ 28 % (13,074

The postretirement benefit obligation reclassification noted above represents the amortization of
actuarial gain that is included in the computation of net periodic postretirement benefit cost.
See Note 7 — Retirement Benefits for additional details.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Cooperative periodically enters into long-term agreements for the purchase of power.
Payments made under long-term power contracts in 2016 and 2015 were $11.4 million and
$47.0 million, respectively. One long-term agreement remained in effect at December 31, 2016
and will continue until either party gives a three year notice of termination. Total minimum
payment obligations related to this contract are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2017 $ 3,892
2018 3,892
2019 3,892
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9. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

The Cooperative is committed to purchase coal for its generating plants under long-term
contracts that extend through 2019. Coal payments under contracts for 2016 and 2015 were
$170.9 million and $135.2 million, respectively. Total minimum purchase obligations for the
next three years are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2017 $ 101,873
2018 53,234
2019 7,907

The minimum cost of the coal purchases, based on the latest contractual prices, is subject to
escalation clauses that are generally based on government-published indices and market price.

The Cooperative is also committed to purchase limestone and lime for its coal-fired generating
plants under all requirements contracts that extend through 2018. These contracts set forth
pricing and quantity maximums for each product but do not require minimum purchases. Given
that annual quantities purchased will vary according to the generation produced at each plant,
minimum purchase obligations for the next two years cannot be determined.

The supply agreements are not accounted for as derivatives based upon the Normal Purchases
Normal Sales exception as permitted by ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.

On June 30, 2016, the Cooperative entered into a $16.4 million contract for the design,
procurement, construction, and installation of an 8.5 megawatt community solar facility at the
Cooperative’s headquarter facilities, subject to PSC approval of the Cooperative’s application for
a CPCN. The PSC granted the CPCN on November22, 2016 and also approved the
Cooperative’s request to assume indebtedness in the form of New Clean Renewable Bonds to
finance the project. The project is expected to be completed in 2017 at a total cost of
approximately $18.0 million.

There are pending civil claims in litigation against the Cooperative. Under the Cooperative’s
general liability insurance program, it is responsible for a deductible amount up to $1 million for
each occurrence. Neither the probable outcome nor ultimate liability resulting from any claims
and litigation can be readily determined at this time. Accruals have been made when appropriate
and management believes that any liability for such matters will, in any case, not have a material
effect on the financial statements.
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10. Power Sales Arrangements

In December 2015, the Cooperative became the lessor under two power sales arrangements
that are required to be accounted for as operating leases due to the specific terms of the
agreements. One arrangement is a capacity purchase and tolling agreement that entitles a third
party to 165 MW of firm generation and capacity from Bluegrass Generation Station Unit 3
through April 30, 2019. The third party is responsible for the delivery of natural gas and also for
securing electric transmission service in their balancing area. The other arrangement is an
agreement to sell the capacity and energy from the Glasgow landfill gas plant to a member
system for a period of ten years. The generating units used in these arrangements have asset
values and accumulated depreciation of $34.3 million and $1.5 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2016 and $33.5 million and $0.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2015. The
revenue associated with these arrangements for 2016 and 2015 was $9.0 million and
$0.08 million, respectively, and is included in operating revenue on the Statements of Revenue
and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
The minimum future revenues under these arrangements are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2017 $ 10,143
2018 10,162
2019 3,708
2020 460
2021 460

11. Environmental Matters

Existing coal and oil fired electric utility steam generating units were required to comply with
Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS) rules to reduce emissions of air toxins by April 15,
2015. However, a one-year extension until April 15, 2016 was available under certain
circumstances. EKPC’s Cooper and Dale Stations received one-year compliance extensions, until
April 15, 2016. Cooper Station completed the installation of MATS controls and timely
complied with MATS requirements. Units 3 and 4 of Dale Station were made available to
operate to ensure reliability of the power grid, as requested by PJM, and officially ceased
operations on April 15, 2016. As discussed in Note 5, given it was probable that Dale Station
would be abandoned, EKPC requested, and the PSC approved, regulatory asset treatment of the
net book value of Dale Station at December 31, 2015.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

11. Environmental Matters (continued)

On April 17, 2015, the EPA published its final rule regulating management of CCR under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and it became effective on October 14, 2015. The final
rule applies to owners and operators of landfills and surface impoundments and establishes
minimum national criteria for the safe disposal of solid waste CCR. The criteria address a wide
spectrum of activities related to CCR solid waste disposal. Areas addressed include location
restrictions, structural integrity requirements, liner design criteria, operations, groundwater
monitoring, closure and post-closure requirements. Also, the closure and post-closure
requirements resulted in the Cooperative revising its asset retirement obligations.

On October 23, 2015, the EPA published the Clean Power Plan (CPP) rule which established
emission guidelines for states to follow in developing plans to reduce 2005 carbon emissions
levels from existing fossil fuel-fired power plants thirty-two percent by 2030. On February 9,
2016, the Supreme Court stayed implementation of the CPP pending judicial review. Oral
argument was held before eight judges of the D.C. Circuit on September 27, 2016. The court has
not yet issued a decision. EKPC and two other cooperatives filed a joint administrative petition
with the EPA for reconsideration of the CPP. On January 17, 2017, EPA denied all pending
administrative petitions. On March 6, 2017, thirteen petitions for review of EPA’s denial,
including a joint petition filed by EKPC and two other cooperatives, were filed. The court
consolidated the petitions into a single case and ordered docketing statements and statements of
issues due April 5, 2017.

The EPA published the Effluent Limitations Guidelines (ELG) final rule on November 3, 2015,
which governs the quality of the wastewater that can be discharged from power plants. ELG
phases in more stringent effluent limits for arsenic, mercury, selenium, and nitrogen discharged
from wet scrubber systems and zero discharge of pollutants in ash transport water. Power plants
must comply between 2018 and 2023, depending upon when new Clean Water Act permits are
required for each respective plant.

The Cooperative is continuously evaluating the impact of the above listed rules on its current
fleet of coal-fired units.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

11. Environmental Matters (continued)

On March 2, 2015, the EPA signed a Court-Ordered Consent Decree to re-examine violations of
the 1-Hour National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) under new triggers and criteria.
Sixty-eight facilities were alleged to be in violation, including EKPC’s Cooper Station.
The facilities are working to demonstrate attainment of the standard. The EPA and the States are
working with the sixty-eight facilities across the country to work through up to four rounds of
attainment demonstrations by December 31, 2020. EKPC filed a modeling protocol and
modeling information with the state and federal EPA for both Spurlock and Cooper Stations.
Kentucky Division of Air Quality (KDAQ) agreed with EKPC’s assessment of attainment and
provided the attainment demonstration to EPA. KDAQ issued the final Cooper Station Title V
air permit on June 17, 2016. On January 6, 2017, the Kentucky Cabinet issued a letter to EPA
that Spurlock Station and several other units in the Commonwealth were in attainment of the
new standard.

12. Related Party Transactions

The Cooperative is a member of CFC, which provides a portion of the Cooperative’s financing
and is also a joint lead arranger and an 18.3% participant in the Cooperative’s $600 million
unsecured credit facility. Held-to-maturity investments included CFC capital term certificates of
$8.4 million and $8.5 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. CFC Patronage
capital assigned to EKPC was $1.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The Cooperative is also a member of CoBank, which is a 15% participant in the Cooperative’s
$600 million unsecured credit facility. The balance of CoBank patronage capital assigned to
EKPC at December 31, 2016 and 2015, was $0.3 million.

EKPC is a member of ACES LLC (ACES), which provides various energy marketing, settlement
and risk management related services to its members and clients. An EKPC director is the
Treasurer on ACES Board of Managers. EKPC’s CEO is also an ACES Board Member. EKPC
accounts for its investment in ACES on the cost basis of accounting. At December 31, 2016 and
2015, the balance of EKPC’s investment in ACES was approximately $0.6 million. Payments to
ACES were $2.2 million in 2016 and $2.1 million in 2015.

EKPC 2016 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

13. Subsequent Events

As discussed in Note 6, the Cooperative executed loan documents associated with three approved
RUS loans of $444.2 million in January 2017. Approximately $183.5 million was advanced to
the Cooperative on these loans in February 2017. Also, In February 2017, EKPC issued an
$18 million note to CFC, which has been designated as a New Clean Renewable Energy Bond, to
finance the Cooperative’s community solar project.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2017, which is the date these
financial statements were available to be issued.
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2017:

Financial (Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses
Net Margin
Members’ Equities
Equity Ratio (%)

Operational

Sales to Member Cooperatives (MWh) *
Member Revenue Per kWh Sold (mills/kWh) *
Cost of Owned Generation (mills/kWh)
System Peak Demand (MW)

Winter Season *#

Summer Season
Net Generation (MWh)

& Includes steam sales

2017
$861,686
$747,291
$22,142
$612,445
16.0

2017
12,536,264
64.28
65.44

2,871
2,311
7,564,321

2016 Increase/(Decrease) %
$887,419 (2.9
$737,131 1.4
$53,708 (58.8)
$575,825 6.4
15.5 3.2
2016 Increase/(Decrease) %
12,866,735 (2.6)
64.51 (0.4)
56.25 16.3
2,890 (0.7
2,293 0.8
9,758,569 (22.5)

& Represents seasonal winter peaks achieved during each respective calendar year (1/8/17 and 1/18/16)

Sources of Electricity
by MWh

1% 1%

Renewables
{Landfill gas & salar)

Natural gas

Hydro/purchases

Other purchases

[ |
Coal

2%

Note: Pie chart figures are rounded.

Customer Classes

by member sales revenue

Small Commercial

Industrial

Residential

Power Plant Capacity”
by net MW

Renewables
(Landfill gas & solar)

Natural gas

Coal

1%

*Includes 168 net MW designated to
serve long-t tolling and PPA

as well as, 8.5 net MW of solar available
for licensing.
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Located in the heart of the Bluegrass state, East Kentucky Power Cooperative is a not-for-profit
generation and transmission (G&T) electric utility with headquarters in Winchester, Ky. Our cooperative
has a vital mission: to safely generate and deliver affordable, reliable electric power to 16 owner-
member cooperatives serving more than one million Kentuckians.

Together, with our 16 owner-members, we're known as Kentucky's Touchstone Energy Cooperatives.
The member co-ops distribute energy to 588,636 meters and 1.1 million Kentuckians across 87
counties. We're leaders in energy efficiency and environmental stewardship. And we're
committed to providing power to improve the lives of people in Kentucky.

2017 at a glance

Total Energy Sales Energy Sales to Energy Sales to Total Operating Net Margin Assets Average Wholesale
(GWh) Members Non-members Revenue ($ millions) ($ billions) Rate to Members
(GWh) (GWh) (S millions) ($/MWh)

13,085 112536 1549 861.7 122.1 3.8 64.3
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EKPC's 16 owner-member cooperatives include:

Big Sandy RECC Jackson Energy Cooperative
Blue Grass Energy Cooperative ® Licking Valley RECC
Clark Energy Cooperative Nolin RECC
Cumberland Valley Electric Owen Electric Cooperative
® Farmers RECC Salt River Electric Cooperative
® Fleming-Mason Energy Cooperative Shelby Energy Cooperative
Grayson RECC South Kentucky RECC
Inter-County Energy Taylor County RECC

EKPC headquarters

East Kentucky Power Generation

Coal Generation Landfill Generation
Spurlock 1,346 net MW Bavarian 4.6 net MW
Cooper 341 net MW Laurel Ridge 3.0 net MW
Green Valley 2.3 net MW
Total Coal 1,687 net MW Hardin 2.3 net MW
Pendleton 3.0 net MW
Natural Gas Generation Glasgow™* 0.9 net MW
Smith summer Total Landfill 16.1 net MW
Combustion 753 net MW
Turbine Winter
Units 989 net MW Solar Generation
Cooperative Solar Farm One 8.5 net MW
Bluegrass*® Summer .
Combustion 501 net MW
Turbine Winter Hydro Generation
Units 567 net MW Southeastern 170 MW
' Power Adm.
Total Natural Gas Summer 1,254 net MW (SEPA)
Total Natural Gas Winter 1,556 net MW
* Under an existing agreement, which continues until April 2019, a third party #n Effective December 2015, a third party began receiving the output of Glasgow
receives the output of one Bluegrass Generating Station unit. in a 10-year power purchase agreement,

Number of Number of Member Populations System Peak
Member Systems Member Meters Served (millions) Demand (MW

16 588,636 1.1 2,871

Miles of Employees
Transmission Lines

2,852 688
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A message from the CEO and the Chairman

In today’s world, the electricity provided by East Kentucky
Power Cooperative (EKPC) and our 16 owner-members is
more than a convenience. It's indispensable in order for
Kentuckians to have the highest quality of life.

In a year marked by major transitions, especially in our
industry’s regulatory environment, EKPC once again
improved lives. We further diversified our generation
portfolio by building one of Kentucky's largest solar farms.
We completed our largest maintenance outage ever,
lowered the average cost billed to owner-members and
worked with them to help recruit companies to our service
territories that created nearly 2,000 jobs.

Safety journey continues

In support of our objective to achieve a zero-injury workplace,
we completed over 4,100 safety observations in 2017, held
our second annual Confined Space Rodeo competition,
offered specialized safety training for field crews and
conducted company-wide training during our annual
Safety Week.

Our recordable incident count was slightly higher, but that
only strengthened our commitment to safety. Our safety
journey has never been about the numbers. It is about
doing everything possible to ensure that every job is
performed safely and that employees go home just as
healthy as when they arrived at work.

Common-sense approach to environmental rules
The new U.S. EPA administration is taking a more common-
sense approach to protecting and preserving the environment
while allowing for a vibrant economy. This change should
slow the rise of environmental costs for Kentucky residents
and businesses, especially manufacturers, which employ
250,000 Kentuckians.

Ash relocation project completed

In 2017, EKPC completed a $25.3 million project to relocate
coal ash from Dale Station’s impoundments, which were

in close proximity to the Kentucky River, to a new lined
landfill at Smith Station. The project demonstrates the
commitment of EKPC and its Board of Directors to
Kentucky's environment.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

Renewable power added

EKPC'’s Cooperative Solar Farm One was placed into operation
on Nov. 12, 2017. This community solar farm is one of the
largest solar projects in Kentucky, providing renewable
power that is much more cost effective than private solar
panels, and enables participants who want to support
renewable power to be free of concerns about
maintenance or bolting panels to their roofs.

Located in Winchester adjacent to Interstate 64, the 60-acre
farm features 32,300 solar panels capable of producing

up to 8.5 megawatts, enough electricity to provide all the
power needs for about 1,000 Kentucky homes. Participants
receive monthly bill credits based on their share of the
value of the power produced, and they can easily monitor
energy produced by the farm online.

Committed to continued reliability

Employees and contractors at Spurlock Station in Maysville
tackled the largest maintenance outage in EKPC's history.
Workers spent months overhauling the turbine/generator of
Spurlock Unit #2 and replacing the bottom of the furnace.
They replaced miles of steam tubes, disassembled and
re-wound the generator and inspected the boiler.

EKPC aiso invested $22.1 million in 2017 to upgrade or
build new transmission lines, distribution substations
and supporting infrastructure. These projects will help to
ensure continued high reliability for years to come.

Continued financial progress

Despite mild weather and lower margin in 2017, EKPC
improved its equity-to-assets ratio from 15.5 percent in
2016 to 16.0 percent at December 31, 2017. EKPC posted a
net margin of $22.1 million on revenues of $861.7 million
for 2017.

Credit rating agencies recognized EKPC's continuing success.
In the spring, Standard & Poor’s (S&P) raised EKPC's issuer
credit rating to ‘A’ with a stable outlook. This and other
credit rating upgrades of recent years have directly
lowered EKPC's costs of borrowing.



Focusing on affordability

As a member of the PJM Interconnection market, EKPC is
able to execute economically advantageous sales and
purchases of power, a valuable tool to help keep power
costs in check for our 16 owner-members and the
Kentucky homes and businesses they serve. These
savings enable EKPC to meet budget expectations and
surpass critical metrics for cost to member systems that
are part of our Strategic Plan.

Economic development recognized

Kentucky's ideal location, skilled workforce and low business
costs — including some of the nation’s best electric rates —
make it ideal for manufacturers to produce and ship products
worldwide. In 2017, Kentucky’s Touchstone Energy
Cooperatives used the latest technologies to promote

our service territories to manufacturers and businesses
worldwide as sites to expand or relocate.

Kentucky's Touchstone Energy Cooperatives received the
Excellence In Economic Development Award for our use
of technologies to market industrial sites to companies
around the globe. We also expanded access to Science,
Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM) education for
teachers and students all across Eastern Kentucky in our
ongoing effort to establish a regional workforce that
offers valuable skills to prospective industries.

Combining these initiatives with team effort and hard
work over three years, EKPC and our owner-member co-ops
successfully recruited companies that have invested more
than $3 billion in Kentucky and created more than 7,800
jobs. These efforts are positively changing lives and will
transform our state for generations to come.

Connected to people

In everything we did during the year, we strived to
constantly remember how our not-for-profit cooperative
impacts more than one million people at the end of the
lines. They are farmers working the land, students in
classrooms, business owners making products and
coaches teaching life lessons. They remind us that our
cooperative is much more than its power plants and lines.

President and CEQ Anthony Campbell (left) with Chairman of the
Board Joe Spalding.

Our co-op is our people. It's about our owner-members
and their members. It's about families. It's about
communities. They connect us to our mission. They
connect us to our values and our goal to do everything

we can to provide them the highest quality of life possible.

Anthony Campbell Joe Spalding
President and CEO Chairman of the Board
,;'Z,-"f ,,j'(_;,);___,:'__ _..__ﬁf { ’_,}_.,,,_,,,_J e :J’f'{ ",’/r XN ;,,,,..‘i.f.f'.'; ,
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The sun rises on Cooperative Solar Farm One, which was built by EKPCin 2017.
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2017: Year in Review

Safety

Safety journey continues

The year began with a successful Safety Week when nationally
renowned speaker Lee Shelby spoke to employees about an
incident in August 1991 that nearly cost his life. On that day,
Shelby came in contact with an overhead conductor energized
at approximately 12,000 volts. He survived but had to have

both arms amputated.
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EKPC and the owner-members exist to make life better today and for future generations.

Also during Safety Week, EKPC introduced four new employee
Safety All-Star award winners and held a variety of safety
training programs.

EKPC's Central Safety Committee (CSC) continued providing
strategic oversight and guidance for the safety program
throughout 2017. The CSC is led by CEO Tony Campbell
and also includes the entire executive staff, the manager of
Corporate Safety and Security, the team leaders of our five
safety process improvement teams, plant managers and
other leaders from throughout the organization.

EKPC retiree Harold Shelton spoke to employees during
Safety Week 2017 about a farm accident that resulted in
his arm being amputated. He stressed the importance of
being safe at all times.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report
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Cooper Station employees participate in the Confined Space Rodeo to improve rescue skills. From left are Cory Bentley,

Ronnie Jones, Billy Bell and John Ratliff.

Other safety highlights included:

« Challenge Coin. Employees received a new Safety
Challenge Coin and were asked to carry the coin at all
times as a daily reminder to focus on safety.

« Kids Safety Art Contest. To help bring the safety
message home, employees’ children and grandchildren
competed in a safety art contest, and the winning artwork
was featured in the employee calendar.

- Family Safety Fair. EKPC hosted its fifth annual safety
fair for employees and their families. The fair actively
engages family members in the safety culture and
provides an opportunity to honor the children and
grandchildren of employees who entered the Kids

Safety Art Contest.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

CEQ Tony Campbell made a very visible demonstration of
his support for safety when he called for a company-wide
Safety Stand Down to emphasize the importance of not
becoming complacent about safety. The meeting was
broadcast live to all locations and stressed the need to
stay focused on safety at all times.

Rhonda Morphew shows nieces Charlotte and Bella Rhodes
how to use a fire extinguisher at the Family Safety Fair.



Operations

Cooperative Solar One dedicated
In a field adjacent to Interstate 64, EKPC built one of the state’s
largest solar farms and began generating sun-powered

electricity beginning in late fall.

Named Cooperative Solar Farm One and located at EKPC
headquarters, this community solar farm produces enough
electricity to satisfy all the power needs of about 1,000 homes
and has 32,300 solar panels.

Members of EKPC's 16 owner-member cooperatives can
license solar panels for $460 each, and for the next 25 years,
receive credit on their monthly power bills for their portion of
the energy produced. By year-end, more than 500 panels had

been licensed by co-op members.

Cooperative Solar

Cooperative Solar gives members of EKPC’s 16 owner-
member co-ops an easy way to benefit from sun power
without the hassle, maintenance or expense of owning
private solar panels.

“The idea of someone else maintaining it was very
attractive to us,” said Guy Huelat, who licensed 77
panels for his Russell County home. “This is much
more efficient than everyone trying to figure this
out on their own.”

Anne Cahill is an Owen Electric Cooperative member
who lives in Erlanger. Cooperative Solar is a perfect
program, she said, because the guidelines of her
homeowner’s association do not permit placing

a solar panel on her townhome’s roof.

“I'think it's a great program,” she said. “I'm talking it
up with my neighbors.”

-
s
o, N
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=3
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Employees remove the generator field rotor of Spurlock Unit #2 as part of the largest maintenance outage in the history of the cooperative.

Spurlock Station completes major outage

In the fall and early winter, Spurlock Station employees and
contractors completed major maintenance outages to ensure
continued high unit refiability. Workers replaced 670 tubes in
the lower section of the Unit #2 boiler — covering 6.5 miles
in length — and performed over 1,350 tube welds. They also
overhauled the unit's turbine/generator.

11 EKPC 2017 Annual Report

Application filed for compliance projects

EKPC filed an application with the Kentucky Public Service
Commission seeking approval to convert the wet ash systems
on Spurlock Units #1 and #2 to dry ash systems, to construct

a new wastewater treatment plant and to retire the plant’s
75-acre coal ash pond. These projects will ensure the long-term
viability of Spurlock Station and continued compliance with

more stringent federal environmental rules.



el

Co-ops improve lives by serving hospitals, industries and businesses.

Coal ash removal completed at Dale Station

Two and a half years after the project began, EKPC
completed a project to move coal ash from disposal sites
in close proximity to the Kentucky River at Dale Station

to a new landfill at Smith Station. Since 2015, nearly 36,000
truckloads of ash were removed from the power plant site.

Dale Station is located beside the Kentucky River and most
of the 80-acre site is located within the river’s 100-year flood-
plain. Dale Station ceased operation in 2016.

ﬁ @oUsiNness

Workers finish a major project to relocate coal ash from
close proximity to the Kentucky River to Smith Station.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report



Smith Station in Clark County has nine natural gas fueled units that help EKPC to meet peak system demand.

Green energy plant expansion dedicated

In early summer, EKPC and Bavarian Waste Services dedicated
the expansion of the cooperative’s plant that is fueled by
methane gas from the landfill. The plant at Bavarian Landfill
in Boone County, Ky, is the largest landfill gas power plant

in the state, generating enough electricity to power more
than 2,700 homes.

EKPC owns and operates five other landfill gas plants in
Kentucky. They are located in Barren, Greenup, Hardin,

Laurel and Pendleton counties. Together, these plants
generate enough electricity to power more than 8,000
homes, and the production costs for the landfill gas plants Mary Jane Warner, right, discusses the expansion of the plant

are competitive with EKPC’s traditional plant fleet. with officials from Bavarian Waste Services.

Power Delivery boosts grid resilience

EKPC invested significantly in new transmission infrastructure
to continue providing high reliability to owner-members.
Projects included the addition of two transmission fines and
four distribution substations, and multiple line rebuilds and

upgrades,

13 EKPC 2017 Annual Report



Bardstown Service Center employees work on a transmission line. EKPC invested $22.1 milfion in 2017 to ensure continued high
reliability to owner-members.

The Telecommunications Team upgraded the southern portion
of the system that brings data from radio towers, plants and
the transmission system to EKPC’s Energy Control Center. By
2019, EKPC will have a completely new telecommunications
infrastructure in place and a system that will double the
system’s capacity.

To speed restoration of electric service to communities after
catastrophic events, EKPC joined with 27 other utilitiesin a
program to provide critical equipment to improve power
restoration efforts during disasters.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report 14



Fog shrouds a line at Spurlock Station, which provides 42 percent of EKPC's generating capacity.

The RESTORE program stands for Regional Equipment Sharing
for Transmission Outage Restoration, and EKPC's participation
improves regional cooperation.

In addition, EKPC participated in the North American Transmission
Forum, a group of transmission owners that cooperates to
improve reliability standards and practices at utilities in the
United States and Canada.

Wayne Prewitt of the Winchester Service Center works to lift
a transmission pole.
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EKPC's owner-members power schools across two-thirds of Kentucky.

Job and community support

Economic Development brings jobs and investments
Promoting business expansion and retention leads to new
jobs, which enables neighborhoods, schools and businesses to
prosper, providing a better quality of life for people served by
co-op power lines.

In addition to gaining international recognition for technological
innovation, the Economic Development team of Kentucky’s
Touchstone Energy Cooperatives helped to jumpstart growth
in many counties by attracting new businesses and helping

existing employers expand.

The co-op team worked with state and local agencies to attract
19 new facilities and assisted with 43 business expansions. That
work resulted in companies investing almost $1.5 billion and
created nearly 2,000 jobs in the owner-member service areas.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report 16



NACCO Materials Handling Group Plant Manager Rodney Wilson in Berea talks about the plant’s forklift manufacturing with Blue

Grass Energy President and CEO Mike Williams.

Holding the international Excellence in Economic
Development Award for innovative use of technology
are Assistant Manager of Economic Development
Brad Thomas, Board Chairman Joe Spalding,

CEO Tony Campbell and Manager of Economic
Development Rodney Hitch.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

Part of this success came from innovative use of technologies
such as PowerMap, a project combining GPS mapping with an
economic development database called StateBook, along with
PowerVision, a first-of-its-kind tool that makes industrial sites
visible to companies around the globe using drone-video
technology.

Kentucky’s Touchstone Energy Cooperatives also expanded
access to Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM)
education during 2017 by partnering with Morehead State
University, University of Pikeville, Union College and Project
Lead The Way (PLTW), a transformative learning experience for
students and teachers. The full K-12 program covers computer



Creating Building Blocks for Success

Will Carty does not fit the typical profile of a computer
programmer. As a native of Magoffin County in coal
country, he worked in the coal industry for 10 years.
But like thousands of Kentuckians, Carty was laid off
with the downturn in mining. To support his family, he
worked at a gas station, mowed yards and thought he
would have to move to find work.

But thanks to TechHire East Kentucky (TEKY), Carty and
36 other graduates began careers in computer coding
with Interapt, a Louisville software company, in 2017.
TEKY is a program that Kentucky's Touchstone Energy
Cooperatives helped launch at Big Sandy Community
and Technical College in Paintsville in partnership with
Interapt, Shaping Our Appalachian Region (SOAR) and
the Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC).

“This has given me the opportunity to take care of my
family, and it’s opening doors to stay home,” Carty said.

The coding class is part of a larger effort called SOAR-
STEM, a one-of-a-kind bold initiative to develop the
world’s largest science, technology, engineering and
math (STEM) workforce in Kentucky.

and biomedical science, and engineering, allowing students
to see the connections between the classroom and the

real world.

The initiative is currently providing professional
development to more than 100 teachers across 27
Eastern Kentucky counties, which includes advanced
certifications with Teacher Leader Master’s Degrees
with National Board certification. The goal is to provide
STEM certified training to 3,000 teachers and education
to 100,000 Kentucky students over a 10-year period.

Preparing for the era of the electric car

With car manufacturers dramatically expanding available
models of electric vehicles (EVs), Kentucky's Touchstone
Energy Cooperatives began preparing in 2017 for the
electrifying future ahead. Dropping vehicle prices, fuel
savings, improved technology and longer driving ranges
are just a few of the reasons for growing interest in EVs.

EKPC and the owner-members began preparing for the
era of the electric vehicle by developing plans to inform
members about the changes that are coming. In addition,
EKPC purchased a Chevy Bolt and Chevy Voltin 2017 to
learn more about EVs and the ways that electricity can
help members live cleaner and greener lives.

Josh Littrell recharges one of the electric cars that was
added to EKPC5 fleet in 2017.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report
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Cooper Station in Somerset features cutting-edge air quality control equipment.

Runners charge down the track at the 2017 Special

Olympics Kentucky Summer Games at EKU.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

Co-ops support communities and charities
EKPC employees donated nearly $32,000 to 15 charitable
organizations during 2017, and Kentucky’s Touchstone
Energy Cooperatives sponsored five programs that
support the mission of service to local communities.
Major sponsorships included the Kentucky Special
Olympics Summer Games, the American Red Cross,

an Honor Flight for veterans, 4-H Summer Camps and
Conservation Clubhouse environmental education

programs for schools.

More than 1,400 athletes, 600 coaches and 500 family
members participated in the 2017 Special Olympics
Summer Games at Eastern Kentucky University (EKU).
Victims of disasters benefited from an emergency
response vehicle and trailer, along with supplies, that
the co-ops provided to the Kentucky Chapter of the
American Red Cross.



People depend on affordable, reliable co-op power in communities across 87 counties served by the owner-members.

The co-ops replaced the aging fluorescent lighting at four
Kentucky 4-H camps with new, energy-efficient LED (light-
emitting diode) lamps. The program dramatically improved
the lighting for 40,000 youth attending summer camps
while also sharply reducing 4-H energy costs.

In September, the co-ops joined with Honor Flight
Kentucky to sponsor 67 veterans who served during World
War Il, the Korean War or the Vietnam War to see their
memorials in Washington, D.C. More than 2,000 people
packed Blue Grass Airport for an unforgettable welcome
home to Kentucky for the veterans.

Teams work to improve employee retention, training
and recruitment

In the fall, four teams of employees began work to determine
strategies to keep employees engaged, while filling open
positions with the best candidates. The teams’ work built
on the results of two surveys conducted early in 2017. The
employees are addressing compensation, performance
appraisals, recruitment and other workplace issues.

In addition, EKPC held a series of career job fairs to highlight

co-op careers and recruit potential employees who served
in the branches of the U.S. military.
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Board Risk Oversight Committee

Assists the Board in fulfilling its risk oversight responsibilities by reviewing enterprise-wide risks,
reviewing risk tolerances and recommending risk-management policies to the Board.

Board Members
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Members
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Non-voting members

Mike Patrick
Steffes Sterling
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Strategic Issues Committee

Serves as a catalyst of business strategies, monitors the development and implementation of those strategies,
while working with management to develop Board focus on issues that will further strategic planning
and execution of those plans.
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Governance Committee
Assists the Board in fulfilling its governance oversight by: ensuring that the Board meets its fiduciary duties, upholds governance

guiding principles and is fully engaged; maintaining the integrity of Board governance; developing, updating and recommending
corporate governance principles and policies; and monitoring compliance with those principles and policies.

Board Members

Farmers RECC
Committee Chair
Board Secretary

Salt River Electric
Blue Grass Energy

Paul Jimmy Jody
Hawkins Longmire Hughes

Nolin RECC

Licking Valley RECC

Voting members
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Audit Committee
Assists the Board in performing oversight of: the quality and integrity of financial statements; compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements related to finances; the independent auditor’s qualifications and independence; the performance of EKPC's internal
audit function and the oversight of the independent auditors; fraud detection and related procedures; and conflict-of-interest policies.
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EKPC Executive Staff

Back row, from lefi, are:
Barry Lindeman, Director of Human Resources and Support Services; David Smart, General Counsel; Barry Mayfield, Vice President of Strategic

Planning and External Affairs; Craig Johnson, Senior Vice President of Power Production; David Crews, Senior Vice President of Power Supply;
Mike McNalley, Executive Vice President and CFO; Tony Campbell, President and CEO; Don Mosier, Executive Vice President and COO.

Front row, from left, are:
Thomas Stachnik, Vice President of Finance and Treasurer; Denver York, Senior Vice President of Power Delivery and System Operations;

Jerry Purvis, Vice President of Environmental Affairs; and Lesli Yates, Internal Auditor.
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EKPC Financial Leadership

Clockwise. from lefi, are:

Thomas Stachnik, Vice President of Finance and Treasurer:
Mike McNalley, Executive Vice President and CFO:

Robin Hayes. Director of Financial Planning and Analysis,
Narmada Nanjundan. Director of Risk Managemen.

and Michelle Carpenter, Controller.

EKPC Operational Leadership

Clockwise, from lefi. are:

Denver York, Senior Vice President of Power Delivery

and Svstem Operations;

David Crews, Senior Vice President of Power Supply:

Don Mosier, Executive Vice President and COO:

Jerry Purvis. Vice President of Environmental Affuairs: and
Craig Johnson. Senior Vice President of Power Production,

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

26



27

2017: Financial Highlights

EKPC’s net margin was $22.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017, a decrease of $31.6 million in comparison
to 2016. Operating revenues were $861.7 million for the
year ended December 31,2017, a decrease of $25.7 million
from the prior year. Mild weather and less favorable market
conditions resulted in decreased member and off-system
sales of $24.5 million and $1.0 million, respectively. Lower
auction prices also resulted in PJM capacity market revenue
declining $2.4 million from the prior year. However, these
decreases were partially offset by a $2.2 million increase in
other electric revenue and power sales arrangements classified

as operating leases.

Production operating expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2017 were $506.8 million, a $6.3 million
decrease from the prior year. These expenses, which are
comprised of fuel, operation and maintenance expenses,
and purchased power, are grouped together for comparative
purposes given that decisions to generate energy or purchase
energy on the open market are based on reliability constraints
and the most economic resources available within the PJM
market. Decreased EKPC generation due to mild weather
coupled with favorable market prices in comparison to units
available to serve load resulted in total fuel expenses
decreasing by $67.7 million and purchased power increasing
by $51.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Production maintenance expense for the year ended
December 31, 2017 was $83.0 million, an increase of $12.8
million over the prior year. The majority of this increase was
from the Spurlock Unit 2 major maintenance outage.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended
December 31, 2017 was $121.5 million, an increase of $15.1
million over the prior year. Approximately $12.0 million of

this increase was due to the amortization of the Smith Unit

#1 regulatory asset, which began on January 1, 2017.

Non-operating margin was $23.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017, an increase of $6.3 million in comparison
to 2016. This increase was primarily attributed to earnings

from additional funds invested in the RUS cushion of credit

program.

EKPC surpassed its 2017 target set for total cost billed to
owner-members. The target was set at $65.95 mills per kilo-
watt-hour. EKPC achieved $64.34 mills/kWh, which was also
lower than the $64.77 mills/kWh achieved in 2016.

Despite mild weather and lower margin in 2017, EKPC
improved its equity-to-assets ratio from 15.5 percent in
2016 to 16.0 percent at December 31, 2017. All of EKPC's
other financial ratios were in compliance with the provisions
outlined in its indenture and other debt agreements

at December 31, 2017.

In the spring, Standard & Poor’s (S&P) raised EKPC's issuer
credit rating to ‘A’ with a stable outlook. In announcing
the upgrade, S&P said the rating upgrade reflected a track
record of strong debt service coverage (DSC) during the
past five years of at least 1.25x and an improved debt-to-
capitalization ratio, which dropped from 92 percent in
2009 to 83 percent in 2015.



Five-Year Statistical Summary

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Net Margin - in thousands §22,142 $53,708 $49,290 $64,845 $68,903
TIER 1.19 1.48 1.44 1.56 1.61
DSC 1.26 133 1.26 1.30 134
Fuel Expense - in thousands $179,335 $247,040 $228,372 $297,399 $292,918
Capital Expenditures - in thousands

Generation $65,634 $35,703 $163,988 $41,793 $25,105

Transmission & Distribution $22,139 $29,963 $47,700 $20,937 $25,779

General $10,170 $5.712 $4,125 $10,172 $1,851
Investment in Facilities - in thousands

Cost $4,236,618 $4,147,295 $3,999,314 $3,867,127 $3,804,664
Long-Term Debt - in thousands il $2,882,216 $2,794,578 $2,499,815 $2,632,276 $2,680,289
Total Assets - in thousands ** $3,825,095 $3,718,233 $3,330,753 $3,403,556 $3,370,055
Number of Employees - full-time 688 696 670 666 643
Cost of Coal Purchased

$/ton $45.90 $51.56 $51.84 $55.49 $58.01

$/MBtu $1.99 $224 $2.27 3244 $2.55
Amount of Coal Purchased - tons 3,492,169 3,821,064 3,927,446 4,288,956 4,571,750
Generation - MWh 7,564,321 9,758,569 8,618,586 10,462,583 10,127,954
System Peak Demand - MW

Winter Season * 2,871 2,890 3,507 3,425 2,597

Summer Season 2,311 2,293 2179 2,192 2,199
Sales to Other Utilities - MWh 548,528 717,130 711,081 805,511 509,140
Member Load Growth - %

Energy (2.57) 3.02 (4.80) 3.72 3.89

Demand 132 (4.81) (0.67) 3.23 318
Load Factor - % 50 51 41 44 56
Miles of Line 2,852 2,847 2,838 2,835 2,816
Installed Capacity - kVA 11,017,745 10,861,447 10,810,447 10,779,247 9,508,311
Distribution Substations 373 369 366 364 363

* Data reported represents seasonal peak achieved during current calendar year

* % Beginning in 2015, LT Debt and Total Assets are net of unamortized debt issuance costs
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Energy Sales to Members Operating Revenue
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The accompanying financial statements of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. were prepared by management, which
is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and include amounts that are based on management’s best judgments and
estimates. The other financial information included in this annual report is consistent with the financial statements.

The cooperative maintains a system of internal controls, including accounting controls and internal auditing. The system
of controls provides for appropriate division of responsibility and the application of policies and procedures that are
consistent with high standards of accounting and administration. The cooperative believes that its system of internal
controls provides reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition
and that financial records are reliable for use in preparing financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by the cooperative’s independent certified public accountants, Ernst &
Young LLP, whose opinion appears on the next page.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consisting solely of directors and member system CEOs, meets with
Ernst & Young LLP, representatives of management and the internal auditor to review their activities and to discuss
accounting, auditing and financial matters and the carrying out of responsibilities and duties of each group.

Ernst & Young LLP has full and free access to meet with the Audit Committee to discuss their audit results and
opinions, without management representatives present, to allow for complete independence.

L A " “ . Yy et )
Anthony Campbell Mike McNalley
President and CEO Executive Vice President and CFO

31 EKPC 2017 Annual Report



Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of East Kentucky Power Cooperative,
Inc., which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related
statements of revenue and expenses and comprehensive margin, changes in members’ equities,
and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

32



Building
working

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated
March 27, 2018 on our consideration of the East Kentucky Power Cooperatives, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.’s

internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
M v MLL?

March 27, 2018
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Assets

Electric plant:
In-service
Construction-in-progress

Less accumulated depreciation
Electric plant — net

Long-term accounts receivable
Restricted cash and investments
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investment
Accounts receivable
Fuel
Materials and supplies
Regulatory assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Regulatory assets
Deferred charges
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets

Members’ equities and liabilities
Members’ equities:

Memberships

Patronage and donated capital

Balance Sheets
(Dollars in Thousands)

Accumulated other comprehensive margin (loss)

Total members’ equities
Long-term debt

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Regulatory liabilities
Total current liabilities

Accrued postretirement benefit cost
Asset retirement obligations and other liabilities
Total members’ equities and liabilities

See notes to financial statements.

December 31
2017 2016
$ 4,203,541 § 4,113,181
33,077 34,114
4,236,618 4,147,295
1,495,332 1,388,803
2,741,286 2,758,492
1,015 1,225
333,244 232,176
36,403 33,735
8,307 8,397
138,959 124,116
178,469 174,749
92,221 89,231
49,686 47,392
61,530 61,112
1,538 863
6,052 6,563
528,455 504,026
165,683 168,958
2,834 3,170
7,868 8,054
$ 3.825.095 % 3.718.233
$ 2 3 2
611,039 588,897
1,404 (13,074)
612,445 575,825
2,882,216 2,794,578
90,815 89,650
62,752 66,170
40,140 38,973
2,096 1,759
195,803 196,552
72,512 83,159
62,119 68,119
$ g,s_i§,095 $ 3,718,233
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin

(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Operating revenue $ 861,686 $ 887,419
Operating expenses:
Production:
Fuel 179,335 247,040
Other 160,935 151,105
Purchased power 166,505 114,954
Transmission and distribution 58,943 55,866
Regional market operations 4,730 4,524
Depreciation and amortization 121,475 106,366
General and administrative 55,368 57,276
Total operating expenses 747,291 737,131
Operating margin before fixed charges and other expenses 114,395 150,288
Fixed charges and other:
Interest expense on long-term debt 114,915 113,042
Amortization of debt expense 477 458
Accretion and other 352 314
Total fixed charges and other expenses 115,744 113,814
Operating margin (loss) (1,349) 36,474
Nonoperating margin:
Interest income 23,113 17,233
Patronage capital allocations from other cooperatives 554 194
Regulatory settlements 10) (20)
Other (166) (173)
Total nonoperating margin 23,491 17,234
Net margin 22,142 53,708
Other comprehensive margin:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 6 (42)
Postretirement benefit obligation gain 14,472 10,212
14,478 10,170
Comprehensive margin $ 36,620 $ 63,878

See notes to financial statements.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Statements of Changes in Members’ Equities

(Dollars in Thousands)
Accumulated
Other Total
Patronage Donated Comprehensive Members’
Memberships  Capital Capital Margin (Loss) Equities

Balance — December 31, 2015 $ 2§ 532,154 § 3,035 § (23,244) § 511,947
Net margin - 53,708 - - 53,708
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities - - - 42) (42)
Postretirement benefit obligation gain - - - 10,212 10,212
Balance — December 31, 2016 2 585,862 3,035 (13,074) 575,825
Net margin - 22,142 - - 22,142
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities - — - 6 6
Postretirement benefit obligation gain - - - 14,472 14,472
Balance — December 31, 2017 $ 2 $ 608,004 S 3035 % 1,404 § 612,445

See notes to financial statements.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating activities
Net margin

Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of loan costs

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Fuel
Materials and supplies
Regulatory assets/liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued postretirement benefit cost
Other

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Additions to electric plant

Restricted deposits held in escrow
Maturities of debt service reserve securities
Purchases of debt service reserve securities
Maturities of available-for-sale securities
Purchases of available-for-securities
Maturities of held-to-maturity securities
Additional deposits with RUS restricted investment
Maturities of RUS restricted investment
Other

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Principal payments on long-term debt
Debt issuance costs

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents — end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
Cash paid for interest
Noncash investing transactions:

Additions to electric plant included in accounts payable
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities

See notes to financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2017 2016

$ 22,142 § 53,708
121,475 106,366

1,077 1,132

(2,990) (14,907)

(2,294) 24,135

(418) (3,903)

(353) 1,869

(3,612) 7,002

1,167 24,394

3,825 4,841

(6,583) (13,102)
133,436 191,535
(100,134) (74,634)
1,500 =

4,247 4,246

(4,250) (4,248)

34,035 60,531
(36,697) (59,037)

90 9]

(241,202) (474,225)
134,917 136,560

227 136

(207,267) (410,580)
368,568 784,000
(279,894) (491,167)

= (1,145)

88,674 291,688

14,843 72,643
124,116 51,473

$ 138959 §$ 124,116
$ 114,697 $ 88.631
S 14,434 14,240
S 6 % (42)




East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

East Kentucky Power Cooperative (the Cooperative or EKPC) is a not-for-profit electric
generation and transmission cooperative incorporated in 1941 that provides wholesale electric
service to 16 distribution members with territories that include parts of 87 counties in Kentucky.
The majority of customers served by members are residential. Each of the members has entered
into a wholesale power agreement with the Cooperative, which remains in effect until 2051.
The rates charged to members are regulated by the Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC or
Commission).

The Cooperative owns and operates two coal-fired generation plants, twelve combustion turbines,
six landfill gas plants, and a solar farm. In addition, the Cooperative has rights to 170 megawatts
of hydroelectric power from the Southeastern Power Administration. One simple cycle natural gas
unit is designated to serve a capacity purchase and tolling agreement through April 30, 2019.
The capacity and energy from one landfill gas plant is designated to serve a member system
through a ten-year purchase power agreement. A portion of the solar farm panels are licensed to
customers of our members.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with policies prescribed or permitted by the
Commission and the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service (RUS),
which conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) in all material respects. As a rate-regulated entity, the Cooperative’s financial statements
reflect actions of regulators that result in the recording of revenues and expenses in different time
periods than enterprises that are not rate regulated in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 980, Regulated
Operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Electric Plant in Service

Electric plant is stated at original cost, which is the cost of the plant when first dedicated to public
service by the initial owner, plus the cost of all subsequent additions. The cost of assets constructed
by the Cooperative includes material, labor, contractor and overhead costs.

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor items of property, is charged to
operating expense. The cost of replacement of depreciable property units, as distinguished from
minor items, is charged to electric plant. The cost of units replaced or retired, including cost of
removal, net of any salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation for the generating plants and transmission facilities is provided on the basis of
estimated useful lives at straight-line composite rates. Rates applied to electric plant in service for
both 2017 and 2016 are:

Transmission and distribution plant 0.71%-3.42%
General plant 2.0%-20.00%

The production plant assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition to
the end of life of the respective plant, which ranged from 2030 to 2051 in 2017 and 2016.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $121.5 million and $106.4 million for 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense includes amortization expense of
$12.6 million in 2017 and $0.7 million in 2016 related to plant abandonments granted regulatory
asset treatment (Note 5).

The Cooperative received PSC approval to charge depreciation associated with asset retirement
obligations to regulatory assets. These regulatory assets are charged to depreciation expense as
recovery occurs. Depreciation charged to regulatory assets was $13.6 million and $10.5 million in
2017 and 2016, respectively.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Asset Impairment

Long-lived assets held and used by the Cooperative are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable.
Specifically, the evaluation for impairment involves comparison of an asset’s carrying value to the
estimated undiscounted cash flows the asset is expected to generate over its remaining life. If this
evaluation were to conclude that the carrying value of the asset is impaired, an impairment charge
would be recorded as a charge to operations based on the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and its fair value. No impairment was recognized for long-lived assets during the years
ended December 31, 2017 or 2016.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments represent funds restricted by contractual stipulations or other legal
requirements. Funds designated for the repayment of debt within one year are shown as current
assets on the balance sheets. All other restricted cash and investments are shown as noncurrent on
the balance sheets. Restricted cash and investment activity is classified as investing activities on
the statements of cash flows.

The Cooperative participates in the cushion of credit program administered by the RUS. Under the
cushion of credit program, RUS borrowers may make voluntary irrevocable deposits into a special
account. The account balance accrues interest at a rate of five percent per year. The amounts in the
cushion of credit account (deposits and earned interest) can only be used to make scheduled
principal and interest payments on loans made or guaranteed by the RUS. At December 31, 2017
and 2016, the balances in the cushion of credit program were $506.1 million and $399.9 million,
respectively.

On December 29, 2015, the Cooperative became the lessor in a capacity purchase and tolling
agreement that is effective through April 30, 2019. As part of the agreement, the Cooperative was
required to pledge cash collateral with a third party that will be refunded over the term of the
contract.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Restricted cash and investments at December 31,2017 and 2016 consisted of the following (dollars
in thousands):

2017 2016
Debt service reserve (Note 6) S 1,068 $ 1,065
Funds restricted by tolling agreement 4,500 6,000
Noncurrent restricted investment — RUS cushion of credit 327,676 225,111
Restricted cash and investments — noncurrent 333,244 232,176
Current restricted investment — RUS cushion of credit 178,469 174,749
Total restricted cash and investments $ 511,713 $ 406,925

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Cooperative considers temporary investments having an original maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
consisted primarily of money market mutual funds and investments in commercial paper.

Investment Securities

Investment securities are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost when
management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Investment securities are
classified as available-for-sale when they might be sold before maturity. Available-for-sale
securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other
comprehensive margin (loss) on the statements of revenue and expenses and comprehensive
margin.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Gains and losses on sales

are based on the amortized cost of the security sold. Investment securities are written down to fair
value when a decline in fair value is other-than-temporary.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash, receivables and certain other current liabilities approximates fair
value due to the short maturity of the instruments.

The Cooperative uses fair value to measure certain financial instruments. The fair value of a
financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (the exit
price). Observable inputs or unobservable inputs, defined by ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, may be used in the calculation of fair value. ASC Topic 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

« Level ] —Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

« Level 2—Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly;

» Level 3 —Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measure and unobservable.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The inputs used to measure cash equivalents are Level 1 measurements, as the money market funds
are exchange traded funds in an active market. The inputs used to measure the available-for-sale
and debt service reserve investments are Level 1 measurements, as the securities are based on
quoted market prices for identical investments or securities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Estimated fair values of the Cooperative’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2017 and
2016, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $ 123,000 $ 123,000 $ - $ -
Available-for-sale securities 36,403 36,403 - -
Debt service reserve 1,068 1,068 - -

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ - $ -
Available for sale securities 33,735 33,735 - -
Debt service reserve 1,065 1,065 - -
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The estimated fair values of the Cooperative’s financial instruments carried at cost at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

2017 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Held-to-maturity
investments $ 8307 § 11,120 $ 8,397 § 9,868
Long-term debt 2,973,031 3,316,224 2,884,228 3,201,920

The inputs used to measure held-to-maturity investment securities are considered Level 2 and are
based on third-party yield rates of similarly maturing instruments determined by recent market
activity. The fair value of long-term debt, including current maturities and prepayment costs, is
calculated using published interest rates for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities and
is a Level 2 fair value measurement.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss that would occur if suppliers or customers did not meet their
contractual obligations to EKPC. Concentration of credit risk occurs when significant suppliers or
customers possess similar characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be affected by the same events.

The Cooperative’s sales are primarily to its member cooperatives and totaled approximately
$805.8 million and $830.0 million for 2017 and 2016, respectively. Accounts receivable at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, were primarily from billings to member cooperatives.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, individual accounts receivable balances that exceeded 10% of
total accounts receivable are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2017 2016
Owen Electric Cooperative $ 12,044 $ 12,272
South Kentucky RECC 9,995 9,698
Blue Grass Energy Cooperative 9,743 9,506
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories of fuel and materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost or market.
Upon removal from inventory for use, the average cost method is used.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

ASC Topic 980 applies to regulated entities for which rates are designed to recover the costs of
providing service. In accordance with this topic, certain items that would normally be reflected in
the statements of revenue and expenses are deferred on the balance sheets. Regulatory assets
represent probable future revenues associated with certain incurred costs, which will be recovered
from customers through the rate-making process. Regulatory assets are charged to earnings as
collection of the cost in rates is recognized or when future recovery is no longer probable.
Conversely, regulatory liabilities represent future reductions in revenues associated with amounts
that are to be credited to customers through the rate-making process.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are presented as a direct deduction from long-term debt with the exception of
those issuance costs associated with line-of-credit arrangements which are classified as a deferred
charge asset on the balance sheet.

Debt issuance costs are amortized to interest expense over the life of the respective debt using the
effective interest rate method or the straight-line method when results approximate the effective
interest rate method.
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East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Asset Retirement Obligations

ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement Obligations, requires legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at fair value when incurred and capitalized as part
of the related long-lived asset, including asset retirement obligations where an obligation exists
even though the method or timing of settlement may be conditional. The liability is accreted to its
present value each period and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related
asset. When the asset is retired, the entity settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a
gain or loss.

Fair value of each respective ARO, when incurred, is determined by discounting expected future
cash outflows associated with required retirement activities using a credit adjusted risk-free rate.
Cash outflows for retirement activities are based upon market information, historical information
and management’s estimates and would be considered Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy.

The Cooperative’s asset retirement obligations (ARO) represent the requirements related to
asbestos abatement and reclamation and capping of ash disposal sites at its coal-fired plants.
Estimated cash flow revisions in 2017 and 2016 are primarily related to changes in the estimated
cost to settle ash disposal sites to comply with the closure and post-closure requirements contained
in the EPA’s final rule regulating the management of coal combustion residuals (CCR). Settlement
activities are associated with the reclamation and capping of ash disposal sites.

The Cooperative continues to evaluate the useful lives of its plants and costs of remediation
required by law.

The following table represents the details of asset retirement obligation activity as reported on the
accompanying Balance Sheets (dollars in thousands):

2017 2016
Balance — beginning of year $ 63,434 § 56,408
Liabilities incurred - 1,153
Liabilities settled (9,594) (12,934)
Estimated cash flow revisions 651 17,343
Accretion 1,818 1,464
Balance — end of year $ 56,309 $ 63,434
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

As discussed in Note 3, the PSC granted regulatory asset treatment of accretion and depreciation
associated with AROs on EKPC’s books by type and location beginning in January 2014. These
regulatory assets will be charged to accretion expense and depreciation expense as recovery of
settlement costs occurs. On March 8, 2018, the PSC approved the Cooperative’s application to
seek regulatory asset treatment for all accretion and depreciation associated with a new ARO
obligation established at December 31, 2016.

Accretion charged to regulatory assets in 2017 and 2016 was $1.8 million and $1.5 million,
respectively. Accretion expense recognized in 2017 and 2016 was $0.4 million and $0.3 million,
respectively, which represented the recovery of settlement costs associated with the Dale Station
ash transfer project.

Rate Matters

Operating revenues from sales to members consist primarily of electricity sales pursuant to
long-term wholesale power contracts which are maintained with each of the Cooperative’s
members. These wholesale power contracts obligate each member to pay EKPC for demand and
energy furnished in accordance with rates established by the PSC. Electricity revenues are
recognized when energy is provided. Energy provided is determined based on month-end meter
readings.

The base rates charged by the Cooperative are regulated by the PSC. Any change in base rates
requires that EKPC file an application with the PSC and interested parties may seek intervention
in the proceeding if they satisfy certain regulatory requirements. After reviewing all the
documentation in the case, the Commission has ten months to complete its processing of the
application and issue an order. EKPC’s last base rate case was authorized by the PSC on
January 14, 2011.

The PSC has adopted a uniform fuel adjustment clause for all electric utilities within its
jurisdiction. Under this clause, fuel cost above or below a stated amount per kWh is charged or
credited to the member cooperatives for all energy sales during the month following actual fuel
costs being incurred. The regulatory asset or liability represents the amount that has been under-
or over-recovered due to timing or adjustments to the mechanism.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The PSC has an environmental cost recovery mechanism that allows utilities to recover certain
costs incurred in complying with the Federal Clean Air Act as amended and those federal, state,
and local environmental requirements which apply to coal combustion wastes and byproducts from
facilities utilized for the production of energy from coal. This environmental surcharge is billed
on a percentage of revenue basis, one month following the actual costs incurred. The regulatory
asset or liability represents the amount that has been under- or over-recovered due to timing or
adjustments to the mechanism.

Members’ Equities

Memberships represent contributions to the Cooperative made by members. Should the
Cooperative cease business, these amounts, if available, will be returned to the members.

Patronage capital represents net margin allocated to the Cooperative’s members on a contribution-
to-gross margin basis pursuant to the provisions of its bylaws. The Cooperative’s bylaws prohibit
the retirement of capital contributed by or allocated to members unless, after any proposed
retirement, the total capital of the Cooperative equals or exceeds 20% of total assets.

In addition, provisions of certain financing documents prohibit the retirement of capital until
stipulated requirements related to aggregate margins and equities are met. Accordingly, at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, no patronage capital was available for refund or retirement.

Comprehensive Margin

Comprehensive margin includes both net margin and other comprehensive margin (loss). Other
comprehensive margin (loss) represents the change in unrealized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities, as well as the change in the funded status of the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation. The Cooperative presents each item of other comprehensive margin (loss) on a
net basis in the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin. Reclassification
adjustments are disclosed in Note 8. For any item required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified to
net income in its entirety in the same reporting period, the affected line item(s) on the Statements
of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin are provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income Taxes

The Cooperative is exempt under Section 501(c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code from federal
income tax for any year in which at least 85% of its gross income is derived from members but is
responsible for income taxes on certain unrelated business income. ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes,
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements. This
interpretation requires financial statement recognition of the impact of a tax position if a position
is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position.
Additionally, ASC Topic 740 provides guidance on measurement, recognition, classification,
accounting in interim periods, and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions. The
Cooperative has determined that more than 85% of its gross income is derived from members and
it meets the exemption status under the Section 501(c)(12).

Regional Transmission Organization

The Cooperative is a transmission-owning member of PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJIM) and
functional control of certain transmission facilities is maintained by PJM. Open access to the
EKPC transmission system is managed by PJM pursuant to the FERC approved PJM Open Access
Transmission Tariff and the Cooperative is an active participant in PIM’s Regional Transmission
Planning process, which develops a single approved transmission plan for the entire PJM footprint.
Energy related purchases and sales transactions within PJM are recorded on an hourly basis with
all transactions within each market netted to a single purchase or sale for each hour.

Power Sales Arrangements
The Cooperative is the lessor under power sales arrangements that are required to be accounted
for as operating leases due to the terms of the agreements. The details of those agreements are

discussed in Note 10. The revenues from these arrangements are included in operating revenues
on the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive Margin.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New Accounting Guidance

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606), or ASU 2014-09. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 will supersede the revenue recognition requirements in the
Revenue Recognition Topic 605 of the ASC and most industry-specific guidance, and creates the
Revenue from Contracts with Customers Topic 606 of the ASC. In August 2015, the FASB issued
Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).
Deferral of the Effective Date to provide a one year delay in the effective date of ASU 2014-09.
ASU 2014-09 will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2019. Early adoption is permitted.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this guidance, as well as the transition
method it will use.

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) or
ASU 2016-02. The core principle of this revised accounting guidance requires that lessees
recognize all leases (other than leases with a term of twelve months or less) on the balance sheet
as lease liabilities, based upon the present value of the lease payments, with corresponding right
of use assets. ASU 2016-02 also makes targeted changes to other aspects of the current guidance,
including the lease classification criteria and the lessor accounting model. The amendments in
ASU 2016-02 will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2020. Early adoption is permitted.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this guidance.

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows
(Topic 230) — Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Payments, or ASU 2016-15. This
amendment provides specific guidance on certain cash flow presentation and classification issues
in order to reduce diversity in practice on the statement of cash flows. This amendment will be
effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The guidance
requires application using a retrospective transition method. The Company is currently assessing
the impact that this amendment will have on its statements of cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In November 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-18, Statement of Cash
Flows (Topic 230) — Restricted Cash, or ASU 2016-18. This amendment requires the statement of
cash flows to explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and
amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Amounts described
as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents will be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement
of cash flows. This amendment will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2019. Early
adoption is permitted. The guidance is applied using a retrospective transition method to each
period presented. The Company is currently assessing the impact that this amendment will have
on its statements of cash flows.

In March 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-07, Compensation —
Retirement Benefits (Topic 715) — Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and
Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost, or ASU 2014-07. This amendment requires that an
employer report the service cost component in the same line item or items as other compensation
costs arising from services rendered by the pertinent employees during the period. The other
components of net benefit cost, including amortization of prior service cost/credit, and settlement
and curtailment effects, are to be included in nonoperating expenses. The ASU also stipulates that
only the service cost component of net benefit cost is eligible for capitalization. This amendment
will be effective for the Cooperative beginning in 2019. Early adoption is permitted. Retrospective
application of the change in income statement presentation is required, while the change in
capitalized benefit cost is to be applied prospectively. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of adopting this guidance.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported net margin.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Electric Plant in Service

Electric plant in service at December 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following (dollars
in thousands):

2017 2016
Production plant $ 3,115,171 $ 3,064,104
Transmission plant 815,878 800,931
General plant 126,252 118,929
Completed construction, not classified, and other 146,240 129,217
Electric plant in service $ 4,203,541 $ 4,113,181

Acquisition adjustments of $4 million were included in electric plant in service at December 31,
2017 and 2016. Acquisition adjustments represent the difference between the net book value of
the original owner and the fair value of the assets at the date of acquisition.

3. Long-Term Accounts Receivable

Long-term accounts receivable represents interest-bearing notes to three of the Cooperative’s
member systems for the buyout of EKPC’s joint ownership of their propane companies.
The member systems make principal and interest (prime rate minus one-half of one percent,
adjusted annually) payments. The notes are payable in full in 2025.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Investment Securities

Cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale investment securities at December 31, 2017 and
2016, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2017
U.S. Treasury Bill $ 24,136 § - $ 1) 8$ 24,135
Zero coupon bond 12,289 - (21) 12,268
$ 36425 § - 3 22)$ 36403
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2016
U.S. Treasury Bill $ 25176 $ - $ 23) $ 25,153
Zero coupon bond 8,587 - (5) 8,582
$ 33,763 $ - $ (28) $ 33,735

Proceeds from maturities of securities were $34.0 million and $60.5 million in 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Investment Securities (continued)

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of held-to-maturity investment securities at December 31,
2017 and 2016, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2017
National Rural Utilities Cooperative
Finance Corporation:
3%—5% capital term certificates  § 7,656 $ 2,798 $ - 3 10,454
6.5875% subordinated
term certificate 225 48 - 273
0% subordinated term certificate 426 - 33) 393
$ 8,307 $ 2,846 $ 33 $ 11,120
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2016
National Rural Utilities Cooperative
Finance Corporation:
3%-5% capital term certificates ~ $ 7,656 $ 1,438 $ - $ 9,094
6.5875% subordinated
term certificate 250 69 ~ 319
0% subordinated term certificate 491 — (36) 455
$ 8,397 § 1,507 § 36) $ 9,868
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4. Investment Securities (continued)

All investment securities held to maturity with unrealized losses at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
have maturities of 12 months or more. The amortized cost and fair value of held-to-maturity
securities at December 31, 2017, by contractual maturity, are shown below (dollars in thousands).
All available-for-sale securities have maturities due in one year or less. Expected maturities may
differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Held-to-maturity:
Due after one year through five years $ 682 §$ 693
Due after five years through ten years 627 642
Due after ten years 6,998 9,785

$ 8,307 § 11,120

5. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

On February 28, 2011, the PSC authorized the establishment of a $157.1 million regulatory asset
at December 31, 2010 for the construction costs incurred and the Cooperative’s estimate of the
costs to unwind vendor contracts associated with the cancelled Smith Unit 1 coal-fired plant. The
Cooperative negotiated final settlement of the Smith Unit 1 contracts, which resulted in a reduction
of the regulatory asset balance to $150.8 million at December 31, 2011. Additional minimal costs
have been incurred each year to maintain the assets. The balance of the regulatory asset was
reduced for parts used by another EKPC generating unit for maintenance and by the amount of a
non-refundable exclusivity payment received from a prospective buyer. Effective January 1, 2017,
the PSC approved a Stipulation and Recommendation Agreement between EKPC and intervenors
which enabled EKPC to begin amortizing the regulatory asset balance, net of estimated mitigation
and salvage efforts, over a period of ten years. PJM capacity market revenues through delivery
year 2019 will be used to offset the expense until EKPC’s next base rate case. The amortization
associated with the remaining balance of the regulatory asset will be included for recovery in
EKPC’s next general base rate case. The balance of the regulatory asset at December 31, 2017 was
$135.6 million.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (continued)

In 20135, the PSC approved EKPC’s request to recognize depreciation and accretion expenses
related to its asbestos abatement and ash disposal AROs in existence at December 31, 2014 as
regulatory assets for 2014 and all subsequent years. Also, in a separate proceeding, the PSC
approved recovery of the costs that will settle the Dale Station ash disposal ARO through the
environmental surcharge mechanism. The associated regulatory asset is being expensed as
recovery occurs. While the Cooperative has not yet requested recovery of the other ARO related
regulatory assets, management believes it is probable that the PSC will allow the Cooperative to
recover the full amount through rates or other mechanisms.

On February 11, 2016, the PSC authorized the Cooperative to establish two regulatory assets for
the abandonment of Dale Station at December 31, 20135, representing its net book value of
$3.2 million. One regulatory asset was established in the amount of $2.4 million with a forty-two
month amortization, which was consistent with the remaining depreciable life of the asset included
in current rates. The balance of this regulatory asset was $0.8 million at December 31, 2017. A
separate regulatory asset of $0.8 million, which represents the balance of capital projects
remaining to be recovered in the environmental surcharge at December 31, 2015, will be
considered for recovery, along with an associated return, during EKPC’s next rate case.

Regulatory assets (liabilities) were comprised of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands):

2017 2016
Plant abandonment — Smith Unit 1 $ 135,618 $ 148,834
Plant abandonment — Dale Station 1,561 2,414
ARO-related depreciation and accretion expenses 28,504 17,710
Fuel adjustment clause 1,538 863

$ 167,221 $ 169,821

L%

(2,096) $  (1,759)
2,09) $  (1,759)

Environmental cost recovery

&

EKPC 2017 Annual Report 56



East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Long-Term Debt

The Cooperative executed an Indenture of Mortgage, Security Agreement and Financing
Statement, dated as of October 11, 2012 (Indenture) between the Cooperative, as Grantor, to U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee. The Indenture provides first mortgage note holders and

tax-exempt bond holders with a pro-rated interest in substantially all owned assets.

Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following (dollars

in thousands):

First mortgage notes:

2.30%—6.67%, payable quarterly to Federal Financing Bank
(FFB) in varying amounts through 2049, weighted
average 4.09%

5.13% payable quarterly to RUS in varying amounts
through 2024

Variable rate, 3.30% at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
payable quarterly to CFC in varying amounts
through 2024

First Mortgage Bonds, Series 2014A, fixed rate of 4.61%,
payable semi-annual, matures February 6, 2044

Tax-exempt bonds:

Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds, Series 1993B,
variable rate bonds, due August 15, 2023 1.35% and
0.95% at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds, fixed rate of 0.40%
payable quarterly to CFC to December 1, 2023

New Clean Renewable Energy Bonds, fixed rate of 4.5%
payable annually to CFC to January 31, 2047 reimbursed
by IRS annually of up to 2.94% for a net rate of 1.56%

Promissory notes:
Variable rate notes payable to CFC, 2.39% at December 31,
2017
4.65%—5.50% fixed rate notes payable to National Cooperative
Services Corporation, weighted average 5.03%
Total debt
Less debt issuance costs
Total debt adjusted for debt issuance costs
Less current maturities
Total long-term debt
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2017 2016
2,431,348 § 2,261,098
4,877 5,534
5,347 6,425
189,000 194,000
3,900 4,500
2,665 3,109
18,000 =
310,000 400,000
9,298 11,094
2,974,435 2,885,760
(1,404) (1,532)
2,973,031 2,884,228
(90,815) (89,650)
2,882,216 § 2,794,578
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Long-Term Debt (continued)
First Mortgage Notes and Bonds

The Cooperative received loan funds in varying amounts through its first mortgage notes payable
to RUS and the Federal Financing Bank. All such loans are subject to certain conditions outlined
by RUS. Listed below are descriptions of those loan applications for which additional funds were
advanced to the Cooperative during the year and the status of any remaining funds approved and
available for advance at December 31, 2017. The amounts outstanding under these notes are
$2.4 billion and $4.9 million at December 31, 2017.

In May 2015, the Cooperative submitted to RUS a loan application in the amount of $90.6 million
for various transmission projects. The loan documents were subsequently executed in
January 2017 with a maturity date of December 31, 2049; $58.5 million was advanced in 2017. As
of December 31, 2017, $32.1 million of the loan remained available for advance.

In June 2015, the Cooperative submitted to RUS a loan application in the amount of $238.9 million
for various generation projects. The loan was revised to $221.8 million and approved by RUS in
September 2015. The loan documents were subsequently executed in January 2017 with a maturity
date of December 31, 2049; $63.3 million was advanced in 2017. As of December 31, 2017,
$158.5 million of the loan remained available for advance.

In August 2015, a loan application was submitted for the acquisition of the assets of Bluegrass
Generation Company, LLC in the amount of $131.8 million. The loan was approved by RUS in
February 2016. The loan documents were executed in January 2017 with a maturity date of
December 31, 2035; $128.8 million was advanced in 2017. As of December 31, 2017, $3 million
of the loan remained available for advance.

In 1984, 1995 and 1998, EKPC entered into secured loans with CFC that initially totaled
$20.5 million. As of December 31, 2017, the amount outstanding under these notes is $5.3 million.

On December 11,2013, the Cooperative entered into a Bond Purchase Agreement for $200 million
4.61% First Mortgage Bonds, Series 2014A due February 2044. The transaction closed and funded
on February 6, 2014. The debt is secured on equal footing with the Cooperative’s other secured
debt under the Indenture. The amount outstanding under these notes is $189.0 million at
December 31, 2017.
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Tax-Exempt Bonds

The interest rate on the Series 1993B Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds is subject to change
semiannually. The interest rate adjustment period on the variable rate bonds may be converted to
a weekly, semiannual, annual or three-year basis, or to a fixed-rate basis, at the option of the
Cooperative. A $5 million CFC guarantee secures payment of the Series 1993B bonds and has an
expiration date of August 15, 2023. The 1993B solid waste disposal revenue bonds require that
debt service reserve funds be on deposit with a trustee throughout the term of the bonds in the
amount of $1.1 million. In addition, mandatory sinking fund payments are required ranging from
$0.6 million in 2017 to $0.7 million in 2024. Debt service reserve and construction funds are held
by a trustee and are invested primarily in U.S. Government securities and CFC promissory notes.
These funds are included in restricted cash and investments on the accompanying Balance Sheets
and have a fair value of approximately $1.1 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

In January 2008, EKPC was approved to receive up to $8.6 million to finance certain qualified
renewable energy projects with Clean Renewable Energy Bonds. The loan was fully advanced in
July 2009. The amount outstanding at December 31, 2017 is $2.7 million.

In September 2016, EKPC was authorized by the IRS to issue $19.8 million in New Clean
Renewable Energy Bonds to finance a planned community solar facility. In February 2017, EKPC
issued an $18 million note to CFC, which is the amount outstanding as of December 31, 2017, and
has been designated as a New Clean Renewable Energy Bond. The remainder of the authorization
expired on March 14, 2017.

Promissory Notes

On July 6, 2016, the Cooperative entered into a $600 million unsecured credit facility with CFC
as the lead arranger, replacing its previously existing $500 million unsecured revolving credit
facility. The facility consists of a $500 million revolving tranche and a $100 million term loan
tranche. This facility matures on July 6, 2021 and is to be utilized for general corporate purposes
including capital construction projects. The agreement allows the Cooperative to request two one-
year maturity extensions and/or an increase in revolving commitments of up to $200 million. In
2016, the Cooperative used proceeds from the facility to repay the remaining $340 million of
outstanding borrowings on the previously existing credit facility. As of December 31, 2017, the
Cooperative had outstanding borrowings of $310 million (including the $100 million unsecured
term loan). As of December 31, 2017, the availability under the credit facility was $290 million.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

In December 2010, the Cooperative entered into an unsecured loan agreement with the National
Cooperative Services Corporation for $23.8 million to refinance indebtedness to RUS. As of
December 31, 2017, the amount outstanding under these notes is $9.3 million.

Estimated annual maturities of long-term debt adjusted for debt issuance costs for the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2017, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2018 $ 90,815
2019 101,029
2020 103,636
2021 106,725
2022 111,541
Thereafter 2,459,285

$ 2,973,031

The Indenture and certain other debt agreements contain provisions which, among other
restrictions, require the Cooperative to maintain certain financial ratios. The Cooperative was in
compliance with these financial ratios at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

As of December 31, 2017, the Cooperative has $3.3 million outstanding in a letter of credit with
the Commonwealth of Kentucky for Worker’s Compensation.

As of December 31, 2017, the Cooperative has pledged securities of $12.1 million with the
United States Department of Labor for Federal Longshore Harbor Workers and the
Commonwealth of Kentucky.

7. Retirement Benefits
Pension Plan

Pension benefits for employees hired prior to January 1, 2007, are provided through participation
in the National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) Retirement and Security Plan
(RS Plan). The plan is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401 and tax exempt
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is considered a multiemployer plan under
the accounting standards. The plan sponsor’s Employer Identification Number is 53-0116145 and
the Plan Number is 333.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

A unique characteristic of a multiemployer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan
assets are available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not
maintained for participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer may
be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers.

The Cooperative’s contributions to the RS Plan in 2017 and 2016 represented less than 5 percent
of the total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. The Cooperative made
annual contributions to the plan of $8.3 million in 2017 and 2016. There have been no significant
changes that affect the comparability of 2017 and 2016 contributions.

For the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required and therefore, not determined, under
the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and
plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the RS Plan
was over 80 percent funded on January 1, 2017 and January 1, 2016, based on the PPA funding
target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates. Because the provisions of the PPA do not
apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and surcharges are not applicable. Future
contribution requirements are determined each year as part of the actuarial valuation of the plan
and may change as a result of plan experience.

Retirement Savings Plan

The Cooperative offers a Retirement Savings Plan for all employees who are eligible to participate
in the Cooperative’s benefit programs. The plan allows participants to make contributions by
salary reduction, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. For employees hired
prior to January 1, 2007, the Cooperative makes matching contributions to the account of each
participant up to 2.0% of the participant’s compensation. For employees hired on or after
January 1, 2007, the Cooperative will automatically contribute 6.0% of base wages and match the
employee contribution up to 4.0%. The Cooperative contributed approximately $3.5 million and
$3.1 million to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Employees
vest immediately in their contributions and the contributions of the Cooperative.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Retirement Benefits (continued)
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Cooperative provides a 457(f) Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to executives of the
organization. The plan is considered a defined contribution plan whereby annual contributions are
made based upon a percentage of base salary. Participants become 100% vested and the account
balance paid out upon attaining age 62 or if separation occurs due to involuntary termination
without cause, disability, or death. Separation for any other reason before age 62 will result in
participants forfeiting their benefits.

Supplemental Death Benefit Plan

The Cooperative provides a Supplemental Death Benefit Plan to all employees eligible to
participate in the pension plan. The supplemental death benefit is payable to a deceased employee’s
beneficiary if the lump sum value of a 100% survivor benefit under the pension plan exceeds the
pension plan benefits plus the Cooperative’s group life insurance proceeds. Management believes
that any liability related to this plan will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Postretirement Medical Benefits

The Cooperative sponsors a defined benefit plan that provides medical and life insurance coverage
to retirees and their dependents. Participating retirees and dependents contribute 50% of the
projected cost of coverage. For purposes of the liability estimates, the substantive plan is assumed
to be the same as the written plan. The plan is not funded.

The following sets forth the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, the change in plan
assets, and the components of accrued postretirement benefit cost and net periodic benefit cost as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands):

EKPC 2017 Annual Report

62



63

East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

2017 2016
Change in benefit obligation:

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation —

beginning of year $ 86,869 92,546
Service cost 1,526 1,690
Interest cost 3,809 4,201
Participants’ contributions 1,332 1,301
Plan amendment — prior service credit (5,634) —
Benefits paid (3,544) (3,575)
Actuarial gain (8,552) (9,294)

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation — end of year S 75,806 86.869

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets — beginning of year $ - -
Employer contributions 2,212 2,274
Participant contributions 1,332 1,301
Benefits paid (3,544) (3.575)
Fair value of plan assets — end of year - —
Funded status — end of year $ (75,806) (86.,869)
Amounts recognized in balance sheet consists of:

Current liabilities $ 3,294 3,710

Noncurrent liabilities 72,512 83,159
Total amount recognized in balance sheet $ 75,806 86.869
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive margin (loss):

Prior service credit $ 5,634 -

Unrecognized actuarial loss (4,208) (13,046)
Total amount in accumulated other comprehensive margin (loss) $ 1,426 (13,046)
Net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 1,526 1,690

Interest cost 3,809 4,201

Amortization of net actuarial loss 286 918

Net periodic benefit cost $ 5,621 6,809
Amounts included in other comprehensive margin:

Prior service credit arising during the year S 5,634 -

Net gain arising during the year 8,552 9,294

Amortization of net actuarial loss 286 918

Net gain recognized in other comprehensive margin $ 14,472 10,212
Amounts expected to be realized in next fiscal year:
Amortization of net loss $ - (286)
Amortization of prior service credit 412 —
$ 412 (286)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The Cooperative increased medical plan deductibles and copays effective January 2018. These
plan changes, along with improved claims experience over 2016 resulted in a decrease in the
December 31, 2017 obligation of $22.6 million which was offset by an increase in the obligation
of $8.4 million due to changes in the discount rate and participant data.

The discount rate used to determine the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 3.76%
and 4.48% for 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Cooperative expects to contribute approximately $3.3 million to the plan in 2018.
The expected benefit payments from the plan, which reflect anticipated future service, are (dollars

in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2018 $ 3,294
2019 3,285
2020 3,081
2021 3,204
2022 3,299
2023 -2027 17,982

For measurement purposes, a 6.40% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health
care benefits was used for the year ended December 31, 2017. The rate is assumed to decline to
4.5% after 18 years. The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the
amounts reported. For example, a 1% increase in the health care trend rate would increase the
service and interest costs by $1.0 million and increase the postretirement benefit obligation by
$12.2 million. A 1% decrease in the health care trend rate would decrease total service and interest
costs by $0.8 million and decrease the postretirement benefit obligation by $9.8 million.
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8. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Margin (Loss) by Component

The following table represents the details of accumulated other comprehensive margin (loss)
activity by component (dollars in thousands):

Unrealized Gain

(Loss) on Accumulated
Postretirement  Investments Other
Benefit Available for Comprehensive
Obligation Sale Margin (Loss)
Balance — December 31, 2015 $ (23,258) $ 14 $ (23,244)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before
reclassifications 9,294 (42) 9,252
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive margin 918 - 918
Net current period other comprehensive gain (loss) 10,212 (42) 10,170
Balance — December 31, 2016 (13,046) (28) (13,074)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before
reclassifications 14,186 6 14,192
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive margin 286 - 286
Net current period other comprehensive gain 14,472 6 14,478
Balance — December 31, 2017 $ 1,426 $ 22) $ 1,404

The postretirement benefit obligation reclassification noted above represents the amortization of
actuarial loss that is included in the computation of net periodic postretirement benefit cost.
See Note 7 — Retirement Benefits for additional details.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Cooperative periodically enters into long-term agreements for the purchase of power.
Payments made under long-term power contracts in 2017 and 2016 were $6.0 million and
$11.4 million, respectively. One long-term agreement remained in effect at December 31, 2017
and will continue until either party gives a three year notice of termination. Total minimum
payment obligations related to this contract are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2018 $ 3,947
2019 3,964
2020 3,964
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

9. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

The Cooperative is committed to purchase coal for its generating plants under long-term contracts
that extend through 2020. Coal payments under contracts for 2017 and 2016 were $109.7 million
and $170.9 million, respectively. Total minimum purchase obligations for the next three years are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2018 $ 87,252
2019 42,973
2020 22,391

The minimum cost of the coal purchases, based on the latest contractual prices, is subject to
escalation clauses that are generally based on government-published indices and market price.

The Cooperative is also committed to purchase limestone and lime for its coal-fired generating
plants under all requirements contracts that extend through 2018. These contracts set forth pricing
and quantity maximums for each product but do not require minimum purchases. Given that annual
quantities purchased will vary according to the generation produced at each plant, minimum
purchase obligations for the next two years cannot be determined.

The supply agreements are not accounted for as derivatives based upon the Normal Purchases
Normal Sales exception as permitted by ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.

There are pending civil claims in litigation against the Cooperative. Under the Cooperative’s
general liability insurance program, it is responsible for a deductible amount up to $1 million for
each occurrence. Neither the probable outcome nor ultimate liability resulting from any claims and
litigation can be readily determined at this time. Accruals have been made when appropriate and
management believes that any liability for such matters will, in any case, not have a material effect
on the financial statements.
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10. Power Sales Arrangements

In December 2015, the Cooperative became the lessor under two power sales arrangements that are
required to be accounted for as operating leases due to the specific terms of the agreements.
One arrangement is a capacity purchase and tolling agreement that entitles a third party to 165
MW of firm generation and capacity from Bluegrass Generation Station Unit 3 through April 30,
2019. The third party is responsible for the delivery of natural gas and also for securing electric
transmission service in their balancing area. The other arrangement is an agreement to sell the
capacity and energy from the Glasgow landfill gas plant to a member system for a period of ten
years. The generating units used in these arrangements have asset values and accumulated
depreciation of $53.1 million and $21.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2017 and
$53.1 million and $20.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2016. The revenue associated with
these arrangements for 2017 and 2016 was $10.5 million and $9.0 million, respectively, and is
included in operating revenue on the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Comprehensive
Margin for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. The minimum future revenues under
these arrangements are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years ending December 31:

2018 $ 10,162
2019 3,708
2020 460
2021 452
2022 452

11. Environmental Matters

On April 17, 2015, the EPA published its final rule regulating management of CCR under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and it became effective on October 14, 2015. The final
rule applies to owners and operators of landfills and surface impoundments and establishes
minimum national criteria for the safe disposal of solid waste CCR. The criteria address a wide
spectrum of activities related to CCR solid waste disposal. Areas addressed include location
restrictions, structural integrity requirements, liner design criteria, operations, groundwater
monitoring, closure and post-closure requirements. Also, the closure and post-closure
requirements resulted in the Cooperative revising its asset retirement obligations. Certain
provisions of the CCR rule were remanded back to EPA by the United States Federal Court of
Appeals for the D.C. Circuit of Appeals for further action on June 14, 2016. On March 15, 2018,
EPA proposed a rule addressing these remanded issues. Comments are due April 30, 2018. No
result of this rulemaking can be predicted at this time.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

11. Environmental Matters (continued)

The EPA published the Effluent Limitations Guidelines (ELG) final rule on November 3, 2015,
which governs the quality of the wastewater that can be discharged from power plants. ELG phases
in more stringent effluent limits for arsenic, mercury, selenium, and nitrogen discharged from wet
scrubber systems and zero discharge of pollutants in ash transport water. Power plants must
comply between 2018 and 2023, depending upon when new Clean Water Act permits are required
for each respective plant. On February 24, 2017, President Trump issued an Executive Order
(EO 13777) that required agencies to review regulations that create undue burden on regulated
entities. As part of this process, EPA is reviewing the ELG rule and reconsidering a number of
issues. The result of this reconsideration will be addressed in a future rule. At this time, future
revisions to the ELG rule cannot be determined.

On November 20, 2017, EKPC filed an application with the PSC requesting a certificate of public
convenience and necessity (CPCN) and authorization to amend its environmental compliance plan
to include a project that is necessary for Spurlock Station to comply with the final rules on CCR
and ELG. The proposed project, which also includes the closure of the Spurlock ash pond and
settlement of the corresponding asset retirement obligation, is estimated at $262.4 million and is
expected to be recovered through the Cooperative’s environmental surcharge mechanism. EKPC
plans to begin construction in January 2019 with an estimated completion date of November 2024.

On March 28, 2017, President Trump signed an Executive Order (EO 17833), entitled “Promoting
Energy Independence and Economic Growth,” directing EPA to review and, if appropriate,
suspend, revise, or rescind the Clean Power Plan (CPP). EPA proposed a rule repealing the CPP
on October 16, 2017. Comments on the proposed repeal rule are due April 26, 2018. EPA also
issued an Advanced Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (ANPR) on December 28, 2017, seeking
comments on a potential CPP Replacement rule. Comments on the ANPR were submitted on
February 26, 2018. The timeframe for the issuance and the content of the proposed rule is unknown
at this time. The Cooperative will continue to evaluate the impact of the proposed rule on its fleet
of coal-fired units.

EPA’s December 20, 2017 notice to the State of Kentucky lowered the 8-hour NAAQS Ozone
Standard from 0.075 parts per million (ppm) to 0.070 ppm. On January 5, 2018, EPA published a
notification, opening the public comment period concerning the state designation
recommendations for the 2015 NAAQS Ozone Standard. The Kentucky Nonattainment
Designation Letter identified certain counties in Kentucky that EPA determined violate the 2015
NAAQS Ozone Standard and nearby areas that contribute to the violating areas. EKPC’s Bluegrass
Station is located in one of the identified counties. The impact of this designation cannot be
determined at this time.
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12. Related Party Transactions

The Cooperative is a member of CFC, which provides a portion of the Cooperative’s financing
and is also a joint lead arranger and an 18.3% participant in the Cooperative’s $600 million
unsecured credit facility. Held-to-maturity investments included CFC capital term certificates of
$8.3 million and $8.4 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. CFC Patronage capital
assigned to EKPC was $1.4 million and $1.3 million at December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Cooperative is also a member of CoBank, which is a 15% participant in the Cooperative’s
$600 million unsecured credit facility. The balance of CoBank patronage capital assigned to EKPC
was $0.4 million and $0.3 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

EKPC is a member of ACES LLC (ACES), which provides various energy marketing, settlement
and risk management related services to its members and clients. An EKPC director and EKPC’s
CEO serve as ACES Board Members. EKPC accounts for its investment in ACES on the cost basis
of accounting. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the balance of EKPC’s investment in ACES was
approximately $0.6 million. Payments to ACES were $2.2 million in 2017 and in 2016.

13. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 27, 2018, which is the date these
financial statements were available to be issued.
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

East Kentucky Power Cooperative (EKPC or the Cooperative) is a not-for-profit electric generation and
transmission cooperative providing wholesale electric service to 16 distribution members with territories that
include parts of 87 counties in Kentucky. The majority of customers served by members are residential. Each
of the members has entered into a wholesale power agreement with the Cooperative, which remains in effect
until 2051. The rates charged to members are regulated by the Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC).

Please note that certain reclassifications have been made to the June 30, 2017 quarterly financial statements in
order to conform to the 2018 presentation.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net margins for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were $32.8 and $20.6 million, respectively.
Operating revenues were $470.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase of approximately
10.5% or $44.9 million compared to the same period in 2017. This change was primarily attributed to increased
member sales and off-system sales of $49.6 million and $6.6 million, respectively, partially offset by a decrease
in PJM capacity market revenue of $12.3 million. Member sales increased primarily due to more favorable
temperatures in the first six months of 2018 as compared to the same period in 2017. Accordingly, megawatt-
hour (MWh) sales to members increased 11.3% or 691,432 MWh, compared with the six month period ended
June 30, 2017. Also included in member sales are cost recovery mechanisms allowed by the PSC for fuel and
purchased power costs as well as for coal-related Federal Clean Air Act compliance costs. The increase in off-
system sales in comparison to 2017 was also due to higher market prices as a result of favorable weather
conditions. The decrease in PJM capacity market revenue was due to lower auction prices in comparison to the
same period in 2017.

Production operating expense includes fuel, other operation and maintenance expense, and purchased power.
These categories should be considered together for comparative purposes given that decisions to generate
energy or purchase energy on the open market are based on reliability constraints and the most economical
resources available within the PJM market. Production operating expense for the six months ended June 30,
2018 and 2017 totaled $278.2 million and $242.7 million, respectively, an increase of $35.5 million. Increased
EKPC generation due to the higher load requirements discussed above resulted in total fuel cost increasing by
$20.7 million. Higher market prices and demand resulted in purchased power costs also increasing by $16.1
million in the first six months of 2018 as compared to 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Electric Plant in Service increased $81.5 million to $4.2 billion as of June 30, 2018 compared to June 30, 2017.
As detailed in the Statement of Cash Flows for the six month period ended June 30, 2018, cash and cash
equivalents increased $7.0 million compared to a $44.5 million increase for the same period in 2017. During

the six month period ended June 30, 2018, $107.5 million was provided by operating activities, $40.7 million
used in investing activities, with $59.8 million net cash used in financing activities.



The Cooperative invests in a cushion of credit program administered by the Rural Utilities Service (RUS).
Under the cushion of credit program, RUS borrowers may make voluntary irrevocable deposits into a special
account. The account balance accrues interest at a rate of five percent per year. The amounts in the cushion of
credit account (deposits and earned interest) can only be used to make scheduled payments on loans made or
guaranteed by the RUS. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, EKPC’s balance in the cushion of credit program was
$518.3 million and $356.7 million, respectively. Approximately $335.5 million and $178.0 million of the
cushion of credit balance at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, exceeded estimated RUS debt service
payments due within one year and accordingly, was included in non-current restricted cash and investments on
the balance sheet.

On June 8, 2018, EKPC accepted a conditional offer from RUS to participate in their Federal Financing Bank
(FFB) Pilot Refinancing Program. The offer to EKPC is to refinance up to $67.6 million in existing loans plus
an estimated $7.9 million make whole premium at favorable current interest rates and extend the maturity date
to December 31, 2050. The transaction is expected to be finalized by the end of the year.

On July 6, 2018, EKPC exercised its option to extend its existing $600 million unsecured credit facility for an
additional year resulting in a new maturity date of July 5, 2022. This facility consists of a $500 million
unsecured revolving credit agreement and a $100 million unsecured term loan.

EKPC’s indenture and certain other debt agreements contain provisions, which, among other restrictions,
require the Cooperative to maintain certain financial ratios. EKPC was in compliance with these financial ratios
at June 30, 2018.

REGULATORY MATTERS

On May 18, 2018, the PSC granted EKPC a certificate of public convenience and necessity (CPCN) to construct
environmental projects at Spurlock Station, including an addition to the Spurlock landfill, to comply with the
final rules on Coal Combustion Residuals (CCR) and Effluent Limitations Guidelines (ELG). The PSC also
authorized EKPC to amend its Environmental Compliance Plan and recover project costs through the
environmental surcharge. The projects, which include the closure of the Spurlock ash pond and settlement of
the corresponding asset retirement obligation, are estimated at $262.4 million and are expected to begin in
January 2019 with an estimated completion date of November 2024.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

On August 21, 2018, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia rendered a decision in a
case involving a number of consolidated petitions, namely Utility Solid Waste Activities Group, et al., against
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). These petitioners challenged the EPA’s 2015 Final Rule
governing the disposal of coal combustion residuals produced by electric utilities and independent power plants.
The decision will not become final until after the deadline for the parties to request a rehearing or hearing en
banc has expired, which will be in mid-October. EKPC believes there will be a remand to EPA to amend the
CCR Rule, which will take time to complete. Accordingly, EKPC will move forward with planned CCR
compliance projects and continue to monitor new developments closely.

On August 21, 2018, EPA published a proposed rule to replace the Clean Power Plan. The proposal, entitled
the “Affordable Clean Energy Rule”, would establish a framework for controlling CO2 emissions from existing
power plants through guidelines that determine the Best System of Emission Reduction (BSER). The rule
empowers states to reduce emissions. EKPC will continue to monitor this proposed rule and remain actively
engaged with the Kentucky Energy and Environmental Cabinet.



QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Cooperative’s activities expose it to a variety of market risks including interest rates and commodity prices.
Management has established risk management policies and strategies to reduce the potentially adverse effects
that the volatility of the markets may have on its operating results. Price risks are further minimized, since we
are permitted to pass fuel and certain purchased power costs on to our members through the Fuel Adjustment
Clause approved by the PSC.

The interim financial statements for June 30, 2018 and 2017 are unaudited. In the opinion of Management, all
adjustments (which are normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of results for interim
periods have been included. The interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Notes to
the Financial Statements included in the 2017 Annual Report.

Anthony Campbell, President & CEO
Michael McNalley, Executive Vice President & CFO



EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT:

In-service
Construction-in-progress

Less accumulated depreciation
Electric plant — net

LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT SECURITIES:
Available for sale

Held to maturity

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investment
Accounts receivable
Fuel
Materials and supplies

Regulatory assets
Other current assets

Total current assets
REGULATORY ASSETS
DEFERRED CHARGES
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

MEMBERS’ EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES

MEMBERS’ EQUITIES:
Memberships

Patronage and donated capital
Accumulated other comprehensive margin (loss)

Total members’ equities
LONG-TERM DEBT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses
Regulatory liabilities

Total current liabilities

ACCRUED POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT COST

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES

June 30,
2018

$ 4,214,339

45,217

4,259,556
1,546,299

2,713,257

929

341,099

36,279

8,211

145,995
182,781
75,623
34,758
66,087

906
8,031

514,181

163,427

1,784

8,238

S_3.787405

$ 2
643,796
1,418

645,216
2,818,211

95,062
45,041

45,060
1,681

186,844
74,452
62,682

$ 3,787,405

June 30,
2017

$ 4,132,829

53,296

4,186,125
1,440,065

2,746,060
1,110
185,065

35,101

8,307

168,665
178,720
70,536
54,996
61,415
2,074
7,115

543,521

168,949

3,333

6,952

S 3.698398

$ 2
609,507

(13,052)
596,457
2,793,414

89,501
47,087

17,582
1,469

155,639
85,969
66,919

$ 3,698,398



EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES AND COMPREHENSIVE MARGIN (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2018 2017 2018 2017

OPERATING REVENUE $ 207411 $194,002 $470,752 $425,828
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Production:

Fuel 47,433 39,942 109,331 88,601
Other 42,871 44,160 75,332 76,662

Purchased power 38,096 35,835 93,522 77,407

Transmission and distribution 13,678 13,797 26,867 28,606

Regional market operations 1,231 1,122 2,756 2,354

Depreciation and amortization 30,030 29,615 59,928 58,510

General and administrative 13,140 12,379 25,591 26,049
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 186,479 176,850 393,327 358,189
OPERATING M ARGIN BEFORE FIXED CHARGES 20,932 17,152 77,425 67,639
FIXED CHARGES AND OTHER:

Interest expense on long-term debt 28,999 28,537 57,699 56,620

Amortization of debt expense 119 119 238 238

Accretion and other - 52 (55) 66
TOTAL FIXED CHARGES AND OTHER EXPENSES 29,118 28,708 57,882 56,924
OPERATING M ARGIN (LOSS) (8,186) (11,556) 19,543 10,715
NONOPERATING M ARGIN:

Interest income 7,210 5,367 14,027 10,594

Patronage capital allocations from other cooperatives 2 4 205 402

Other (500) (702) (1,018) (1,101)
TOTAL NONOPERATING M ARGIN 6,712 4,669 13,214 9,895
NET M ARGIN (LOSS) (1,474) (6,887) 32,757 20,610
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE M ARGIN (LOSS):

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 2 3) 14 22
COMPREHENSIVE M ARGIN (LOSS) $ (1,472) $ (6,890) $ 32,771 $ 20,632



EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITIES (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands)

BALANCE — December 31, 2016
Net margin

Net current period other comprehensive gain

BALANCE — June 30, 2017

BALANCE — December 31, 2017

Net margin

Net current period other comprehensive gain

BALANCE — June 30, 2018

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Margin (Loss)

Unrealized
Gain/(Loss)  Postretirement Total
Patronage Donated on Investments Benefit Members'
Memberships Capital Capital Available for Sale  Obligation Total Equities
$ 2 $ 585,862 $ 3,035 $ 28 $ (13,046) $ (13,074) $ 575825
20,610 - - - - 20,610
- - 22 - 22 22
$ 2 $ 606,472 S 3,035 S © S (13,046) $ (13,052) § 596,457
$ 2 $ 608,004 N 3,035 $ 22 $ 1,426 $ 1,404 S 612,445
32,757 - - - - 32,757
- - 14 - 14 14
N 2 $ 640,761 N 3,035 S ® S 1,426 $ 1,418 § 645216




EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2018 2017 2018 2017
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net margin (loss) $ (1,474) $ (6,887) $ 32,757 $ 20,610
Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 30,030 29,615 59,928 58,510
Amortization of loan costs 261 262 524 558
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (3,345) (3,393) 16,598 18,695
Fuel (4,456) (1,323) 14,928 (7,604)
Materials and supplies (293) (232) (4,557) (303)
Regulatory assets/liabilities 3,178 2,118 (612) (1,602)
Accounts payable 2,595 6,172 (17,711) (19,083)
Accrued expenses 5,713 3,968 4,920 (21,391)
Accrued postretirement benefit cost 970 1,405 1,940 2,810
Other (2,487) (3,500) (1,199) (2,002)
Net cash provided by operating activities 30,692 28,205 107,516 49,198
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to electric plant (19,648) (31,031) (28,814) (45,284)
Maturities of debt service reserve securities 1,069 1,062 2,136 2,123
Purchases of debt services reserve securities (1,073) (1,064) (2,144) (2,124)
Maturities of securities available for sale 36,555 33,816 36,555 33,818
Purchases of securities available for sale (36,322) (35,123) (36,417) (35,162)
Maturities of securities held to maturity - - 96 90
Additional deposits with RUS restricted investment (6,383) (44,429) (12,622) (91,313)
Maturities of RUS restricted investment 232 44,955 463 134,454
Other 55 31 89 126
Net cash used in investing activities (25,515) (31,783) (40,658) (3,272)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt 17,525 15,102 17,525 216,500
Principal payments on long-term debt (35,832) (20,928) (77,347) (217,877)
Net cash used in financing activities (18,307) (5,826) (59,822) (1,377)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,130) (9,404) 7,036 44,549
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of period 159,125 178,069 138,959 124,116
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of period $ 145,995 $ 168,665 § 145,995 $ 168,665




EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE

SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Unaudited)
YEAR-TO-DATE ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

, INC.

Equity (Dollars in Millions)

Equity as a Percentage of Assets
Current Ratio
Times Interest Earned Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

2018 2017
$645 $596
17.0% 16.1%
2.75 3.49
1.57 1.36
1.47 1.33

EKPC BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BIG SANDY RECC
Danny Wallen, Director

BLUE GRASS ENERGY
Jody Hughes, Secretary

CLARK ENERGY
William P. Shearer, Director

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC
Elbert Hampton, Director

FARMERS RECC
Randy Sexton, Director
(effective June 5, 2018)

FLEMING-MASON ENERGY
Tim Eldridge, Director

GRAYSON RECC
Kenneth Arrington, Director

INTER-COUNTY ENERGY
Joseph Spalding, Chairman of the Board

JACKSON ENERGY
Landis Cornett, Treasurer

LICKING VALLEY RECC
Ted Holbrook, Director

NOLIN RECC
A.L. Rosenberger, Director

OWEN ELECTRIC
Alan Ahrman, Vice Chairman of the Board

SALT RIVER ELECTRIC
Jimmy Longmire, Director

SHELBY ENERGY
R. Wayne Stratton, Director

SOUTH KENTUCKY RECC
Boris Haynes, Director

TAYLOR COUNTY RECC
Raymond Rucker, Director






